6.1

Rationale for the Proposed Acquisition
We have taken note of the following as extracted from Seclion 4.1, Part A of the Circular

QOur chservalions are as follows:

We nole that the Proposed Acquisition wili enable the Group to strengthen ils earnings base
and enhance its cash fiow arising from the sales of the serviced apariments held by IHP. Upon
completion of the Proposeg Acquisition, IHP will become a 58 50%-owned subsidiary of the
Group. Any revenue, profits and cash flows generated from the sales of these serviced
apartment units will be consolidated lo the Group's earnings and can be used to fund its other
property development projects.

We also note that the Proposed Acquisition will allow the Group to consolidate the assets of
IHP in the Group's stalernant of financial position and expand Hs landbanks for fidure properly
development projects, namely Plots A, B and C of the KWRC Land,

The Proposed Acquisition also represents a strategic oppertunity for the Group to increase lis
participation share in the fulure development of the KWRC Land in view of the potential
development of Plols A, B and C of the KWRC Land in view of its sirategic location which is
located within the future Kuanlan Waterfront Resort City project, near the Kuantan city cenire
and with a beach frontage. However, we further nole that Plots A, B-and C are presently vacant.
Maijlis Perbandaran Kuantan had grantsd conditional approval for the building plans for the
development of a commercial area in 18 Januvary 2018. This approval has since lapsed as IHP
had subsequently decided that the developmen! of senviced apartments with & retail podium
would enable IHP to generate a higher potential retum from this parcel of land. As of the date
of Valuafion Report 1, being 14 Octaober 2020, no new planning submission has been made to
the authority for the developrment of Plols A, Band C,

We ncle thal the seltlement for the Purchase Consideralion will mainly be via issuance of
Consideration Shares and a minor portion o be paid via cash. This will allow the Group o
conserve its cash as well as pul the Group on a stronger financial footing to facilitate its existing
property developrment and construction projects and day-to-day working capital. Further ta that,
this wilt also prevent the Group from becoming highly geared as it will not be taking up additional
debt to finance the Proposed Acguisition.

In evaluating the rationale for the Proposed Acquisition, we have Yaken into consideration that
the Proposed Acquisttion is in fine with Bina Puri Group's business direction e with the focus.
on canstruciion and praperty development (Source: Bina Pii's Annual Report for the FYE 30
Jurte 2020) and will enable the Group lo expand its core business in property developmenl.
The KWRE Land is also expected to complement with the hospitality division of Bina Puri as it
is promoted as the new integrated resort of leisure and enlertainment destination with
seafrontiwaterfront living concept. The concept of the KWRC Land development wilt be
focusing on tourism attractions and facilities, hotel and resort, business and commercial,
medical and wellness ceptre and cruise terminat, ali of which concentrates on providing facitiiss
and services for tourists, visitors and public.

We notz that the construction sector is expecied to rebound by 13.9% in 2021 on acgount of
the acceleration and revival of major infraslructure projects, coupled with affordable housing
projects. The residential subsector is anticipated (o imgrove, supparted by various measures
taken by the Government to address the properly overhang situation. Among the measures
include the extension of Home Qwnership Campaign (HOC), exemption of real property gains
tax {RPGT), the introduciion of rent-to-own {RTO) scheme as well as reduction of foreign
ownership threshold, The performance of the non-residential subsector is expected to recover
marginaglly, supported by on-going commercial projects, including Bukit Bintang City Centre,
Cyberjaya City Centre, Forest City and Malaysia Visich Valley 2.0. (Sotrce: Macrosconomic
Quitpok, Economic Outlook 2021, Ministry of Finance Malaysia). In view of the posilive outlook
of construction sector as well as the residential and non-residential subsectors, we are of the
opinion that the Proposed Acquisition will provide value creation {o Bina Puri Group moving
forward.
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and Swiss-Bel Hotel {B Jock B} an 18 Fehrmery 2}32& and 6 Gctabar 291& rasp%ﬂ%iy up K
the LPD, of the tolal of 714 units, 813 units or 8%.85% of the servicad apartments thal are
available for sale were sold. This indicates thal despite the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, the
demand for serviced apartments were not materially affected. In view of the feregoing, the
Proposed Acquisition is expecied o improve the Group’s revenus and cash Bows from the sale
of the remdining Serviced Apartment unils.

Premised an the above, we gre of the opinion that the rationalé for the Proposed
Acquisition is reasonable and not detrimental to the non-interested shareholders of Bina
Puri. Nevertheless, shareholders of Bina Puri should note that the potential benafits
arising from the Proposed Acquisition is subject to cortain risk factors as disclosed in
Bection 6.7 of this 1AL,

Evaluation of the Purchase Consideration

As stated in Seclion 2.3, Part A.of the Ciroular, we nole thal the Purchase Consideration was
arrived between the parties on g willing-buyer willing-sefler basis and afler taking inlo
consideration, among others, the adjvsted NA of HP Group as at 31 December 2018 Delalls
are as follows:

o - RMDBOY |

T Audited sonsolidated NA of IHP Group as st 31 Decembar 2018 12,168
&id: Revaluation sutphst™ 83642 ¢
Lesy Deferred faxation ansing front the reyaluation™® (15274) ¢

| Adprsted consolidated RA of IHP Group 60,5936
Adjusted consolidated NA of IHP Group — 44.50% 28,038

ftr in corfomclion with the Proposed Acguision, the Company Had appointed the Values b
urdertake & vatuabion exorciss on e IMP Properfes. The revajuation sumpiirs was derived fom
8 valialion exercive contfucti hy the Valuers for the pipesesof e Proposed Acquisiion and”
will not be incomorsted o e sudiled fencial satements of IHP,

The reysiugtion surpins of e 8P Properiies is caloidated as foflows:

F‘rop@mes held by IHEP
Coemmercil Lots 15000 5457 8043
- Casa Mils Chib House 4500 1.095 3404
- Cases Venigia Club House 5000 1.908 3081
- 2 adiviniing wilis of 2 % storey Shop offices 1,800 355 1,545
A residential ool within shop offices 1t a4 46
7.1 29
Properties held by IHD
- Rerdved Apartienis &5, 300 34,280 31040
Undevaloped portfons of the KWRC Land JrFonl  za9 I5.407
) ) o GB,447
Less: 309 Interest Tiold by minorfy flerasts {18,934}
o 46,513
Total i 63,642

™ Hazed on the corporaie come tax rate of 24%.
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We are of the view that the method of adjustmients used in the aforementioned caloulation is a
commenan industry practice in deriving the adjusied consglidated NA,

We note that as at the LPD, there remains 101 units of sewviced apartments avaiiable for sale.

However, this is npl expecied to impact the Purchase Consideration as the adjusted
consglidafed NA of iHP assumes the serviced apariments sre able ta be sold at thejr fair rarket
values and the proceeds from any such sale will be recogrised in the NA of IHP, We alse note
that the Furchase Consideration is based on, among cihers, 120 units of serviced dpariments.

From the date of valuation up to the LPD, 1HP had entered into agreements wilh third-party
buyers for the sale of 32 units of serviced apadments. of which 13 were subsequently
tarminated or cancelled. We are of the view that the Purchase Consideration remains falt and
reasonable in view that Bina Puri will still b able b consolidate the revenue and earning darived
feorm the sals of services apartment by 1HP in the Group's audited finsncial statements upon
completion of the Proposed Acquisition,

in evalirsting the faimess ¢f the Purchase Consideration for the Proposed Acquisition, we have
taken inte consideralion the following;

{i Valuation of KWRE Land, which consist of the following:

. 128 units of serviced apariments together with B units of terracas, 82 units of
airconditioner ledges and 221 car park bays as accessory parcalsfimparium
Residence (Block A), Swiss-Bel Hole! (Block BYKuantan Waterfront Resod
City, Jalan Tanjung Lumpur 1, 26060 Kuanian, Pahang Darul Makmur
{"Serviced Apartments”);

* & units of cormmercial lols together with § units of eracesfoyers and 38 car
park bays a@s actessory parcels foeated within Podium Block/imparium
Residenge (Block A), Swiss-Bel Hotel (Block BiKuantan Waterfront Resort
City. Jalan Tanjung Lumpus 1. 28060 Kuantan, Pshang Darid Makrrir
{*Commercial Lots™}; and

» Lot 158850 and Lot 159851 /Kuantan Waterfront Resort City, Jalan Tanjung
Lumpur 1, 26080 Kuanian, Pehang Osrl Makmur ("Lots 158850 and
158851"); and

(i Valuation of Other Properties {ag defined herein}, witich consist of the-following:
. Lat No 52186 and Lot No, 52187/4Unit Np. 1 & 2, Jalan Bukit Jdaman B/,
Taman Bukit idaman, 66100 Batu Caves, Selangor Darul Ehsan ("2 adjoining
uriits of 2 ¥ storey shop offices’);

. Lot No. 52185/Unit No. 3A, Jalan Bukit ldaman 8/1, Bukit ldaman, 88100 Batu
Caves, Selangor Darut Ehsan ("A residential unit within shiop offices™;

* Lot Na. 60291/Casa Milz Club House, Jalgn Bukit idsman 30, Taman Bukit
icamarn, 68100 Batu Caves, Selangor Daref Ebsan (“Casa Mila Club House™):
and

. Lot No, BO292/Casa Venicia Club House, Jalan Bukit ldaman 371, Taman Bukit
aman, 68100 Batu Caves, Sefangor Daml Ehsen ("Casa Venicia Club
House'}

{coltectively referrad to as the “Other Properties”),
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The details of the valuation of the KWRC Land and the Other Properties are as set out below

Section reference
_ neermormee V0. WS AL
Ovarview of the valuation methods used by the Valuers Seclion 6.2.1
Valuation of the KWRC Land Section 622
Valuation of the Qther Propeities Section 8.2 3

Overview of the valuation methods used by the Valuers

Bina Puri had appointed 2 independent valuars, namely Cheston and irhdmy, (o appraise thie
market value of the KWRE Land and the Other Properties respeclively for the mirpose of the
Propased Agquisiion. The Valuation Cerlificate 1 and Valusiion Cerlificate 2 &r the KRG
Land and Other Properties respectively aré annexed as Appendix IV of the Ciroular.

A summary lable of the methods adopled by the Cheston and lihamy to arrive sl the market
yalie of the KWRC Land snd the Other Properies respectively sre set oul below:

[HP Fropetties Vaituation Method Eross chack Appendix
method Referance in the
" _ Circular
KWRC Land
{ (3) Buildings
- Serviced Market/Camparison . 1 Appendix IV
Apartmeits approach
- Commaeieial Lots | MarketComparisan | lecome approach Appendiz [V
approash by investment
methok
{b} Lots 153850 and | MarkelComparison . Appendix iV
! 155851 approach
Other Properties
{vy 2 adjgining units of 2 | Comparison method - - Appendic [V
¥ storey shop offices
fey A residentini unit Comparison method . Appandix iV
within shop offices
{e} Casa WMia Club Comparison mathod - Appendin IV
Mouss {Land)
Depraciated
Replacemeant Cost
method
{Building)
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{HP Properties © | Valuation Mathed | Cross check  Appendix
method Reference in the
. N Circular :
{fi Casa Venicla Club Comparisan method - Appandix IV
House | {Land}
Dapreciated
Replacement Cost
methott
{Building)

We have reviewed and are satisfied with the basas, assumptions and veluation methodclogy
applied by Cheston and lrthamy for the appraisal of the market value of the KWRC Land and
Qther Properties, raspeclively. We are of the view that the adoplion of abovementioned
valuation methads are reastnable, appropriately spplied and are consistent with the generally
applied valuation methodologies for property inconformily with the Assel Valuation Guidelines
issued by the Securibes Commission Malaysia and the Malaysian Valualion Standards issued
by the Board of Valuers, Appraisers, Estate Agents, and Property Managers Malaysia.

Kindly refer to the Valuation Certificale 1 and Valuation Certificate 2 prepared by Cheston and
irthamy respeciively as sel oulin Appendix IV of the Cireuder for further defails.
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Income Approach by Investment Method (eross check method)

We take nole that Cheston has also adopted the Income approach by Investment method as a
cross check method to the market vatue derived from the Market/Comparison approach for the
Commercial Lots.

The following factors were laken into consideration by Cheston in deriving the Investmen!
method of valuation;

{i}

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Market Rental:

We note that the comparable commercial lots used by Cheston in Valuation Report 1 are
within the vicinity of Kuantan, Pahang and yield an adjusted rental between RM2.73 pst
lo RM3.04 psf after retevant adjustments were made for the differences in market
condition due to €OVID-19 pandemic (time), location and accessibility, building
designiqualityftenant mix and positioning, posiiion {cornerfend) and size. We also note
that out of the 8 comparables that were analysed, Cheston hat used the comparable
that have the least dissimilarities with the Commerciat Lots.

We note that after making the refevant adjustments, Cheston hag adopted a fair market
rentat vatoe of RM2.583 psf for the Commercial Loty

Annual Outgaings:

We note thal Cheston has analysed the past annugl cutgoings and adopted the actual
amount for service charge, sinking fund, quit rent, assessment and Insuraince. In respect
of the repair and maintenance and management fes, Cheston has estimated and
adopled 3%, each of the gross annual rental as fair expenses based cn its analysis of
other simitar shops from its research database and arrived at the fair ouigoings of the
Commercial Loy,

Rent Loss AdjustmentsiVacancy Allowance:

We note that Cheston has taken info consideration the general frend of shop/offices
vagancy for similar type of properties in the locality and the duration of the rent free
sllowance based on prevailing market practice. We further note that Cheston has
allocated 10% of the gross annual rental for vacancy period, vacancy between rent
reviews and rent free and fitling oul pariods as falr representation for the reversion.

Yield/Capitalisation Rate:

\We note that the resultant net rent would then be capitafised by an appropriate yield to
arrive at the market value of the Commersial Lots,

We furlher note that the yield adopted by Cheston is afler considering relevant factors
including location, existing market condition, physical characteristics, size, tenure and
carefully going through the rental trends and annua! outgoings of similar type of
properties, The yields adopted are market based and after taking into consideration the
characteristics of the Commercial Lots.

We note that based on the vield adalysis performed by Cheston, the yields of
transactions of similar type of retail unils and terraced shoploffices in the localily ranges
between 5.15% and 5.76%. We also note that Cheston through consideration of the
refevant faclors including losation, existing market condition, physical characteristics,
size, fenure and carefully going through the rental trend of similar type of properties as
well as annval outgoings, adopted a yield of $.50% for the Commercial Lots.
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6.3

(&)

Evaluation of the lssue Price of the Consideration Shares

As noted from Section 2.4, Part A of the Circular, the Issue Price of RMO.0B5 per Consideration
Share was agreed upon between the Company snd the Vendors immediately prior 10 the
exacution of the HOA afier taking into vonsideration hat ifrepresents;

{h a discount of 11,18% to the 5-day VWAP of Bina Pur Shares of RM.0857 up to and
including the LTO; and

{ily & discount of 7,10% {o the 1-month VWAP of Bina Purl Shares of RM0.0315 up to and
ircluding the LTD,

We have further evaluated the fssue Prica of the Consideration Shares baset on the historical
markel prices of Bina Purt Shares, VWAP analysis and NA. per Bina Pun Sherg as below.

Historical market price of Bina Puri Shares

The chart beldw sets out the historicai clasing merket prices of Bina Puri Shaves for the past
12 munihs preceding the LPD;

agr S A 3 [X e P [ e £ 3yh, [T g o

ek i it

(Source: Bloomberg)

In addition, {he monthly highest and lowest traded market prices of Bina Puri Shares for the
past 12 months preseding o the LPD are as follows:

HighiRM}  tow{RM)
2020
March 0080 €080
April £.080 G040
May 0085 o080t
Juneg o075 0660
Jugly 0085 G o560
August G105 065
September 0.118 0.075
Qeloker £ 405 G078
Movembsr 3105 DOTE
December G125 liRec
2021
Janusry 0.418 0.0d0
Febtuaty 13105 {1085

{Soume; Bloomberg)
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Based on the above, we note that the highest taded market price of Bina Puri Share has
increased from RMU.080 in March and April 2020 to RMO.085 in May 2020 before decreased
to RMO.076 in June 2020. The highest traded market price of Bina Puri Share have been
trending upwards since Jily 2020 and.up to RMO.115 in Sepfember 2020 before decreasing to
RO 105 In October 2020 and November 2020. The highest traded market price rebound to
RMB,125 in December 2020 before dropping to RM115 in January 2027 and further down o
RMO. 105 in February 2021

The highest and lowest iraded market prices of Blna Puri Shares for the past fwsive (12) months
price to LPD were RMO.125 and RMO.030 on 16 Decerber 2020 and 19 Mgreh 2020
respectively while the highest and lowest closing market prices of the Bina Puri Shares for the
past twelva {12) months precading the LPD were RMO 115 and RMO.035 on 16 Decémber
2020 andg 23 March 2020 respectively.

We roted that the Issue Pricae of RM0O.08E is within the highest ard lowest raded market prices
of Bina Puri Shares for ihe past 12 months preceding o the LPD. In refation lo the foregoing:
we are of the opinion thal the ssue Price is reflective of the prevailing market price of Bina Puit
Sharas.

VWAP analysis

We have assessed the fairmass and reasonableness. of the issue Price of RMD.0BS per
Consideration Share and compared the said [ssue Price against the following:

{1 the closing market price of Bina Puri Shares on RMO.098, being the LTD; and

{it) the S-day, 1-month, 3-month, 8-rmonmth and 12-month VINAP of Bina Puri Shares up to
and including the LTD which are set out in the table below:

Markot | Presmiumi(Discount) of |
priceWAP the Issue Price over |
the market
yricelVWAR
- BM M k.3
Lasl ij{adsd market prive of Bing Pur Shaes as ot 00980 | Q0100 t10.53) |
e LTI
5.y VWAP COEs? | @muion | (11.a8)
Lomonth VNAR 00815 | {0.U0BG) {rioy
oenoeth VAR PRE {0 Ilﬁ)‘?ﬁ} {F.51}
B-rmanth VIWAP 0.0885 {0.0035) {3.95)
1 2-momth VINAR B Og4z QU008 5
For informalion anty;
Las! tracded markel grice of Bina Pud Bhares as o 0.1000 {0.0150) 1530}
e LPD

Based on the above, we poted that the 1ssus Price regresents.

(=) a pramium of RIM0.0008 {0.95%) over the 12-month VWAP up 1o and inchading the
LTD; and

b} 2 discount ranging from RM(.0035 {3 968%) to RMD.G107 {11 18%) for the last tradad
miarket price as &l the LTD, 5-day, T-month, 3-month and B-momth YWAPs up lo and
incduding the LTD.

We noted that based on the last traded market price of Bing Puri Shares as al the LPD of
RMO.1000, the Issus Price is at a discount of RMO.0150 or 15.00%.
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We note that the Issue Price was agread upon after taking into consideration the 5-day and 1-
manth VWAR of the Company up to and including the LTD. We are of the opinion that the 5-
day and 1-month VWAP would serve as a meaningfyl reference for our evaluation on the
fairness of the Issue Price as these markel prices refiectd the most recent market tiansactions
and market prices of Bina Puri Shares. In addition, we have also taken info consideration the
analysis of 3-month, B-month and 12-month VWAP of Bing Purl Shares in carrying out our
evaluation. As the Issue Price is based on a markel-based approach, we are of the view that
He Issue Price Is justifiable.

W nofe that from Section 3.8, Part A of the Circolar, the Piacement Shaves of the Proposed
Private Placement will be issued at a discount of not more than 20% fo the S-day VWAP of the
Shares up to and inchuding the tast irading day immediately preceding the price-fidng date.
Premised on the above, it appears that the Issue Price for the Proposed Acquisition which was
agread lipon between the Company and the Vendors based on the discounts of 11.18% and
7.10% respectively tn the S-day VWAP and 1-month VWAP of Bina Puri Shares up to and
including the LTD is compsarably lower. Based on the forsgeing, we ate of ihe view that the
issue Price is justifiable and fair io the non-dnterested sharsholders of Bina Puri.

NA per Bina Puri Share

We ricte that Bina Puri Share has riot fradedt above the NA per Bina Puri Share of RM0.35
based on the sudited consolidaled statement of financiad position of Bing Purl as at 30 June
2020 since June 218 up W the LPD.

Although the issue Price of RM0.085 per Consideration Share is at 75.71% discourt to the NA
per Bina Pur Shire of RM0.35 as gt 30 June 2020, we are of the view that the Issue Price 9
justifiable as there i5 no assurance thal Bina Puri may b able o reafise the NA per Bina Puri
Share at its full value, after aking into sonsidaration variogs faciors, such 25 the raturs of Bina
Purl's asssds which. comprise mainly of inventory properies held for development, inventory
praperties under development, inventories andinvestment properties which are afl highly tiquid
and cannot be readily converted o cash or cash squivalents.

Premised on the above, we are of the opinion that the Issue Price of RM0.085 per

Consideration Share is justifiable and fair to the nondnterested shurcholders of Bina
Purl.

77



8L

BIOPUBA, DUR IBSEUTIMNS USRANGG
wodn paBe Ajeninu UM UOIUA UOREIBPISUDY
BEBYDING B O WewARd  pus  UONEISHISUDD
;B a0 suwies  Enpecord AR SUNS] #SSUYL

SHIBYS ARG Ayl
0 UBLUBIINUS Sy) N0 §18s 3 se Ausdwiod B jo saieys

Bunoaly uoijoesuen Aue U UoURUOD S WHED SALL

| paysnipe 80 RUS UONBISMSUED SSeUDING BUI ' HoeRjRA feU)d,) (Aue I} sianieh
1Bl wol spodas UcHBRIEA.BUL o SeRUTYINE JuBASiSs Syl Ag pBiacsT mLSUILICD

MOS0 EIES S BINIGE DU W pRsEY

fue o uensind papnioepstes §1 sSnedosg dMi B Y uonenes oy ey i (B

‘st S1EAS Supaolty Byl jo Aul pritoys ‘Auedr syuswnsnipe O joalqrs § pus seisdony
JdMI 34T JO UDHBREA S PUB BLOT JOMIS0DN LE PODUS Jead 1RIOUSUY Ul 10 JHi
10 SUNOSDE DAIDNE 34 UD POSeq ¥ LONBIBPISUOT BSRUOIN Bul 1oy saube sawed oyl

UOnRIBPISUC] FSEHDIN JO Juaunsnipy (1)
Byep uopedios Sy Wity SuILoW &
Ui SI0DUBA Y} OF JesBUNING Bu AQ pled ag of ANQ (DO0'EEL ‘SN pusioyy
b Ay | ple pospurd aUC) VORRIN 9844 ) esfeep UBBuUN G uoRRSpIBUCS YseD ()
PUB 'SIED UONSITWI0D B U0 WS ST UEIN0 188 58 sudipodou
pue sjunowe SAloadsar B U1 SEGGINK 1O aopd anse Sy JB seBuRunu Jeuy)
10 SIOPUDA BUL O] SEIEUS UONRIBDISHCT) BU) JO SoUBNES] pUes JusLonB 10 Aem A (8)

Buusw

Buimonioy 8y w sgefed sq geys S2IBUG YBC 2l JO UODBIBPISLOS SSEUDING Ay
UOHEIARISUDY FSEYNNA Jo Jwawked (1)

eitifed pue uogpisuey 7

WdS B 0 usiadwoo ay) saye jo uo ageded 10
pred 10 9pE "palelnaEp SUDHNGITISID PUR SpUapia e Bupnpw orasay Bulydene myessy Jo
Ao SiHBU g L JouyiaBy pue SSOURIGLINOUS IB WoK 03] SSIBYE iBS Y] eseyaind jeus
JSRUMN SUT PUR 11DS (jBUS SIODUSA 541 'Vei§ U1 40 SUDRIDUCD pUe SWE) ayl of 1elgng

S3IEYS dHI BYL JO eseyound pue dleg 4

T SUSWIWIGY NG

«mw o1y 40 suua] MSlEE |

BMOUOS S8 QI8 BN ST JO ¥ HEd '$Z UDIDSS Wiy ROIDRAKE 8)8 UM "YdS 2U IO SWISY JUSHES AUl UG SBUBTUSUALIDD IND

TS Y1 J0 sULLY Juaes

L



6.

O DUt Bl o) Jusliisniss sodeman UZ U SINSGY DAGNE BINULILE S WERS B Uy

§ At Jsd B U0 Ung BU AG pred S0 DRUESRD LONNGLASID JO DUSPIAIR 0 UNCWE 8l Ag

pEsnipe 24 BYS UoRIApISUOD BSBLING By 'sep uopawrhuos sy of soud

80l ANES] X SRIBYS UCHBMDIFUCD JO BQUINU [BUCHPDY =  LEED Ul DRIISUES Bq Of JUnowy

DR PAIETS S8 YNULIGE BUY) L0 PBSET USED L JBSENMING Sl AQ paysnes
aq fim Jusuysnipe spiemdn jewy Ay pmusseida:r anea oY CSIRYY UORRIBPISUCD

v sRseug
, UDHEIRMSUTT) .
, . uonesapisuoy _ UDNEIBDISUGD
2oudenssi={  pueyoing wwwmwmum )= 1O FeUInG
Py Bi Oy waunsipy

SMOIEHRY POYEIS SO SIMUANIG) SUT UL DESEY S UDuas {Bueys
IS2URSU S U) UMD DIHUNGST SSIRLS UOREIBHISUTTY JO Jaquingy Sy of Jusuisn(pe sy Ag
pBYSnipE ag (M panss) ag o) SSIRYS UOREISPISUDD JO JBqUING aul ‘aaone (1) Jo (i) sty
oF wensind paienpe & 901 SNSS| DU JOOUE UONZIBNISUOT SSEYDIN 9] JUBAS 34 U]

saHeHE NoNRIBPISUOYD Jo Jusugsnipy (A1)
“Sise aleys
pRaNpad Y fleys aoud anssi el 'slEp usisdiuoD sy o Joud BUE Y4S 3y 0 S1ep g
JBYE & UONNQIISID JO PUSHIAIR 43NS Uty 21Bp JUeBRliue Byl AQaisum SISpIoYBIeUS S
O} BONGISID 10 puspAp Aue sfed JO SSURDER Ung Buig Yeul Ju9aR By Ui jusunsnipe
0} 123[Qns 30 BUS SSBUS UonBIBMSUCD By 10 soud ansst aus ey aabe sawed ay)
Sa4RUS UoReIBPISUOY) BY) 3o Boid anss) Jo Jwaunsnipy (M)
“ABuipGooe
PUE Y S §0 S0 o JBle 31 UOINGUIRID JO pUepiMp YIS 10] SIER JWsusiius
B PUR Y B O 2)8P HUL1E SB US 2QRINOAR) S58) DAJADUSS 84 JIBYS pue Kew
diil jo uogsed s1as8e 19U Ay pUR UOWSOY [BIRAURLY BUL JO PUIRILEP SQ eus 10 few

STUEIHSONS SN JOPUR JHI JO 1868 [ENED JO JUBLMD U} 184} YINS SIBPIOYaLEyS
S O} UOHNGINSIN 4O puapiMp Aue SARD JO SeIRPBD SauUBmpISONS SII Jopue gl i (G)

{%pZ~ L) X (UDJENEA ~ UORENEA(BWY) = UOUEIBNISUOD SSEVRING Bl OF JuBuRsNipy

SIUBUILIOD 1IN0

V4S 841 30 SuLa) Jusyeg |




08

UONEBPIBULY
BSBYIIN 341 BUINLSD. It SISEQ BUL IND S1BS WLLE SILL

‘dneisy gt 2y Ag poumo siasse payeles Aledold Jayo s

e PUET DHARY BUI LO JUBICOIBASD BUL I BTIEA TENIBW S PUB G102 JSGUIBIR( LE PADUD

JEah jerueuy S 108 dH1 JO SIUINOODE BEIDNE SUY) O PESEN & UOLRISRISUO BSBYDING BYL

dopenies

N4

: "RuTEY eSSy 0 usuesibe sseyind aeys
B U SULI| UOUILIND aje pug uomsinbay pasodoiy

2yl o) ape oAb of senied DUR SSRLOWINE WBASEI |

ay) woy padnbas seaordde Aupin s mepaoard

SUDRIPUDD @SBy BINBU UINS 30 Suohdesuen o |

2004 Sue] UWWos sle %ﬂﬂﬁmtgﬁﬁg sy

. b §0 SIS
jo mibal S Ui SIIBYS SjBS AU JO JAISUR YT O DoReNSIBaI B puB IBERLDING U
o1 SIOPUSH, BU} Wit SIIBUS B12g SU1 Jo fBysURY S BUmoIdde Qi 10 SI0PEIP 1o peoy  (B)

HESRUDING 3} AQ SSuByS Sleg au 16 uolsinbaR syl o) pRusAuDS g O Bullesw
1essual ApioRIpG LB I8 Uind Buld Jo SIepjoysieds paisaielli-uou sl o eacidde )

SRIBYS MBS TN SO LONISINDOE BUYYI0) JESBUDING BY) O SIADIOYIBYS AU} J0 featidde  (2)
SOIBNG LONRIBHISUOT By Jo uonelanb pue Buist s o) reacsdde sanunoag esing  (p)
fozog sawatag 67 uo pedreysip usag sei afiieys a4l
‘uoREtLIGIILIOT PUET DHAMM 91040 D PUB § 'Y 81014 40 1580s8s W pRyiag jues §Sg
jo-anone) U o Au pamssibar sliey) sy slieyosp o) N Bnsoxd eys siopuap au  (3)

{etbi v Butploysieus W aBueyd su Jop AIRSSROBL U8 TUBSUOD BS0NM ‘AuEd-piu)

| AuE pUEON0IE dHI O SI0IPBID AU} JO/PUE SISIURLY ‘SWURY "SSNLIOUINE JUBARIE! B

winy siopussa sy Ay paueioe Buksg eacudde Jo uesuor ‘wiswsemBe ‘ponnbes aseub {4
OIS M) BU} we Ssiuaxe aouabpp snp ay) jo uonoRisies  (B)

MAS U W pALmads se pousd [euolIpUCD

| Ul Uus pajlry vesq Buirey suompucs Buimoyo) sy vodn [PUDMBUDO B4 IIBYS YdS UL

wapasaad sUCIPpIOD

€

SHIBIWIOS 0

YdS Su) jo suuie) JUalps |




L8

THUSAD

ors 16 aduaiinidto ubdn saped aaostdss sy

30 s1ubu By Memdis o8B PUB YdAS U BURLEE 0}
] seued syl moye Aoy se apudosdds due Suls asey |

I Uone0. oS OpISE 19 10 90040 O} 5091 Jons
ENE] O] Spe) JDSBUDING S DUE IBSENDING at suBe paussaud s dn-Bupum e {4}

, 40 By peemidns Sul LILRIM
OIS 10U St FUES BUl DUB V4T S U suoueByao su salpes ssseytindg syt i

wen uonschuos sl vo o asolg R D)

“BEWUBe 40 Ainbe
Ut wE e o) peynus By Aew Aued Bumineisp-ucu sS4 UM saipeilas Jo siubs ey
Aue o) aapnfaid WoUM vdS eul sieuris] 0] paRguR ag peus Aued BUngep-uou sy
g viiyechaos oyl e SuoRSngl i uia Adiuos 0) Sineun S vas sy oy Auedadipe ()

Wl 84l vl paigindie se pouad EuspULo
Bl jo Aydxs syl Ag pein) jou Sue JWepssRId SUGTIBUOD. BUL JB Aue juase B u) "Aued
A0 BUL0Y Bunus u Sonou e Buinsst Ag vdS o) Steunus ol pajuue o Ligys Aued Auy  (8)

_ N BUE 4O FSauEUI
B sveKad 3 Se SRuosEs) e SuDREIURSAIdE
- pue sejUBuem 10 SUUSL B JBUI MEIN BY] IO B IAA

, YIS Bl Ui INC 1S SE SAUBLBM SI0pUBA, B}
10 YoRRiq B JO 1BAB BUJ Ul YdE SU) sjeuuLey O} ung
BUIE 10} SBPIACIC WG ) ‘Broie el Bulpumsyimon
' "SJODUBA BY] A USLBEILDS 4O Dney AU (o IrEsl g
s2 BUISHE SORUSUEM BUY) JO OB B JO/IBNUN SLIED
SHEHO] AUR §0 Joaisa: U wiatl 10 AU JO-SIDPUDA B0
| Aupqel; Aue Bunoinss. o Buiuy §o eye sy ey Jew

YdS sui Ut Buiou §1 supt 18U DAIOU OS{e SABY SR

, ‘ SEp upgaues sy o)
soud safjueiiem JO UIBRIG B 40 JUsAD SUI Ul USYET 85

- 0} stfais o jas Aoyl se ateudaidde aue suua) Bsayy

n.u.amwmmgk !

S By

JoBINPOUDS ISy BY) 0] N0 185 ST SHIUEHIEM JBLLN. SI0DUSA B} LD SOUBHSI SISERYIN, BU)
u0dn wdh BUE DU PRIDIUS SeU JSSEUtan Sy jeU abpenounte sIopusa By LoDy
BAp ualm siqen naw ye Aed o) 2ige § pue Mnsueq (IUBAIDSYE Jou S ey jo yoes ()

PUE SULSE B YN souepInsse Wy uedn guonebyas Suipwg simasuss s padanie
LA GO Y & BY) Wouad puR Ofr Jopa Of Apidwing pue ssmod iy aaey upew fayr {B)

AEYT JOYI0 YRS O JUBLIEM JSERUNING BUl PUE SIOPUSA SU|

suopejuasesdas pue soqueLep g

SIUBLILOS AN

VoG O 3O GUkIa] Iudpg |




Z8

"N BUE JO SIBPIOUSIBYS POlSSIaN-uoy By JO s380ISiLl 8l Of

[EIUSLIISP JOU PUE BjGRUOLEAE PRIOPISUOD BI8 YJS YL JO SUCIHDUOD PUE SUMS) JUDIES OUJ JRL3 MAA BUT JO BIE 8M *SA0YE SYI U0 PISRUBIY

S8)8 BBIDEUILE UM vAS SUL SIRULLE) O) DBNIUS BY (BYS Jeseyling S
sepradod pue siesse Jey) o ued Aue Jo dnoig

U dfH1 0 soiusdoid pus 519858 ‘SuniELIBpUN SY J8AD BIMUSYSD B of uensind Joupais

e a0 Unog syl g poodde 91 Jabeutul JoypuR J9AE0R) B IGIROSIILDE ue A

By uonned uong apise 9% 40 ssoddo o sdas yons
et o) siie} dnoagy JHi pue dnosgy JHi isuebe pejussiud 91 Andrusiueg sopuoinad  (A)

16 wonnsd Gons onise 198 10 ssoddo o) sdais Gons sye
o) {18y SSODURA Y DUR siopUaA ey isuwelie pawesaud s Aoydnasueg sy vonged w  (AD

10 'sopusa o Ag vonefiigo ey uuouad o)
BaNjiE) [RUSIBW B0 WS 31 40 SUORIPUOD 1O SULS] AU O yiesiq leumeur 2 & sdoyg) (m)

10 Wl BUE U] IR0 105 SB SOjuURLEM SI0DUSH B jo uymetin e stemn {0

o Inseyting
a4} J0 dnoarf ur saleus aeg Byl J0 segsues ayl Bunosys w yeen sopusa By (1)

e vonatuins sy wo Jo ascRg i (p)
TES SIRIPOIALE UM Yd S U SIBUILEIS) Of DRIUS BT HEYS SI0pUAA B

TUMSISUCILL JO IRAUN &g o1 Bul

,. Aue 12 pundy §) JeseysIng syl A3 Uaaib sanuenem 10 suonelussadar au o Aue {a

Jo ‘seiusdond pue siesse s) jo ved Aue o seseuoing
&y o satpadosd pue Slesse "BunBLBpUn BU) JOAQ RIMUSIED € o} Juensind ONpalD
fug 50 undoy a2 mn Ecma%m s spbeusw Jopue JonR08 B mieisuiwpe ue {n)

SIUBUILDT 100

Vd§ 24 JO Suus] judlieg




85

&8

Financial gffects of the Proposed Acquisition

W note the Toflowing from Section 7, Part A of the Ciroular;

Effocts

Propas&ci Acqui&ﬁfén

Shate capital

share cagzita% ai‘ the Cnmpany fram R&M&Q 478288 wmprimg
872,080,000 Shares as st the LPD to RM213,278,286 comprising

| 1,152.080,000 shar% upon fhe issuante of the Congideration

Sharss pursuant 1o the Proposed Asquisition.

NA and gearing

Upon completion of the Pwmﬁm Amamh&n the pro forma NA per
Share will decrease from RMB.32 to RMO 27 whereas the pro farma
geating of Bina Puri Group will decrease fromy 1.10 tires I §.94
times.

Suibstantiat
sharehalders’

i shareholdings

Upon the issuance of the Consideraion Shares, the Proposed
Acquisition will result in & difufion in the shareholdings of the sxisting
sharehgiders of Bina Puri, save for the Vendors, 1o whom the
Congideration Shares will be issued, which represents up fo

approximataly 32.11% of Bina Pui's issued share capital as st the

LPO.

Lossesandg LPS

| Upon completion of the Proposed Acquisition, the pro forma LAT

altribulable to ownars of Bing Pud will increased fram RM15.02
milion to RMZ0.24 million as 2 resull of consolidation of IHP

Group's losses arising the Proposed Acquisition.

The pro farma LPS of the Group wili decrease from 3,32 sen o 2.37
sen a8 A result of eonsolidation of IMP Group's lossés and incréase

in weighted average number of Shates due to the issuance of the

Consideration Shares pursuant fo the Proposed Actuisition.

Moving Torward, the impact of the Proposed Acguisifion on the
consofidated logses and LPS of the Company is depandant un the
fmancial performance of the IHP Group. Nevertheless, the
Proposed Acquisiion is expecied fo coninbate positively to the
future sarnings of the Group, premised on the prospects of the (HP

-Graup as sef out in Section 5.5, Part A of the Circutarand further
Cenhante and improve the Gmtsgx 5 NA and gearing.

Premilsed on the above, we are of the view that the financial effects of the Proposed
Acquisition are not detrimental fo the intorest of the nomn-interested sharsholdars of Bina

Puri.

Indusiry outiook and prospects

In evaluating the prospects of the Graup moving forward, we have considered tha overview and
pulinok of the Melaysian economy, the tverview and cutiook of the construction and property
industry-irr Malaysia, the overview and outiock of the property developrment industry in Pahang,
the prospects of the IHP Group and ihe prospects of the Bina Puri Group.

Presmised to Section 5, Parl A of the Circular, our commentaries are as follows:
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We observe that the Malaysia economy recorded a negative growth of 3.4% in the fourth quarter
of 2020, largely atiributable to the imposilion of the CMCO on a number of states since mid-
October. On a quarter-on-quarter seasonally-adjusted basis, the economy regislered a decline
of 0.3% (3Q 2020: +18.2%). We note that the growth trajeclory is projected to improve fromithe
second quarter of 2021 onwards. The vaccine roflout from February 2021 onwards is expecied
to lift sentiments.

The Malaysian economy contracted by 17.1% in Q2 of 2020. The performance for Q2 2020
was the lowest recorded since Q4 1998. The Government has introduced several measures
under the Budget 2020, aimed to improve properly market acfivities:

{1 the revision of (he base year for RPGT to 1 January 2013 {initially 1 January 2000) for
property purchased belore the date (ie. 1 Jancary 2013); and

{ii) the reduction of price threshold for foreign purchase from RM1 million to RMS00,000
for unsold completed high-tise properties in urban aress. Consequently, several states
have revised the minimum price for fareign purchase.

We observe the positive signs in the 2019 property marke! are seen fo have diluted due to the
aftermath of COVID-19 pandemic. The pandemic has immensely tken ifs toll on the world
economies and the Malaysian economy, i particular tourisme-relaled se¢lors as. well as the
manufacluring and selected services sectar. The property development induslry in Pahang has
softenad in {he first hatf of 2020 where there was a fzlt of 31.7% in volume and 27.4% in valug
as compared to the first half in 2019. Nonetheless, the introduction of policy measures including
Prihalin Rakyat Economic Stimulus Package (PRIBATIN), new short-term Economic Recovery
Plan {(PENJANA), Bantuan Prihatin Nasional 2.0 (KITA PRIHATIN), Budgset 2021 and
Perlindungan Ekonomi Dan Rakyat Malaysia (FERMAI Assistance Package by the
Government are expected to stimuiate Malaysia's economy and mitigate the impact of COVID-
19 and the MCO. '

We note that IHP Group have the rights o develop the KWRC Land, thus far a portion of the
land had been developed as Imperium Residence and Swiss-Bel Hotel, a mixed development
comprising serviced apartments and commercial units. Moreover, despile the soflening in the
Pahang propery market the unils have been wsil-recaived with 85.88% of the serviced
apartmént scld as at the LPD. The list of unsold unils can be found in Section 2.2.1, Part A of
the Circular. Wa also note thal the remaining undevefoped portion of KWRC Land measuring
8 acres is located in a sirategic location near Kuantan town cenfre and has a besch frontage.
KWRC Land is expected to benefit from the development of the Kuantan Waterfront Resort
City project due to its close proximity {0 the planned developmant. The Company will be able
to consolidats he revenuss and cash fiows generated from the sales of the remaining Serviced
Apartment owned by IHP in addition to participating in the development of the KWRC Land as
IHP will become a subsidiary of the Company upon completion of the Proposed Acgulsition,

The management of Bina Puri expacts its properly development divisian to e further bolstered
by the Proposed Acquisition through the development of the undeveloped portion of the KWRC
Land in Kuantan, We nole that the Group has several ongoing projects in Joher, Pahang,
Sabah and Sarawak with a combined estimated GDV of RM1.42 billion.

We note on 28 Augusl 2018, the Board had announced that the Company intended to
undertake the Previous Proposals {which includes the Propesed Acquisilion 2018 and
Proposed Amendments}. The Proposed Acquisition 2018 was approved by the non-interested
Shareholders in the EGM of the Company held on 24 December 2018 Howsver, the
shargholders’ resolution for the Proposed Amendmenls was nof carried. In view of the inter-
conditionality between the Proposed Aequisition 2018 and the Proposed Amendments, the
Company could not proceed with the Proposed Acquisition 2018,
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We wish o highiight the key differences in relation to the Proposed Acquisition as compared
to the Proposed Acquisition 20048

0

(i)

{iliy

(iv)

v

{vi}

Imperium Residence (Block A} and Swiss-Hel Hotet (Block B} were still under
development for the Proposed Acquisition 2018;

the total consideration for the Proposed Acquisition 2018 was RMAZ BHZ 343
{‘Purchase Canslderation 2018°} for 2,477, 108 IHP Shares, which is aqwaiem to
approximately RM17.23 per HP sham, as compered Io the cunent Purchase
Considaration for the Proposed Acquisition of RM26,838,000 for the scquisition of
2,022,593 \HP Stiares, which is equivalent to approximately RM13.32 per IHP share;

the valuation of Propossd Actuisiion 2018 was dedved from Phase 1 (comprises
KWRC Land), Phase 2 (comprises 487 acres of landg which has yel 1o be developed,
af which approximalely 454.49 actes of net salsable area is subjected to land
reciamation wark} and Other Properties whereas the valustion of Proposed Acquisition
is derived from KWRC Land and Other Properties only;

the mads of paymant for the Proposed Asgulsition 2018 consists of considaration
shares and redeemable praference shares {'RPS"} while the current mode of payment
consists of cash consideration and consideration shares only;

the Proposed Amendments was lsbled to the shareholiers of Bina Puri g% the
Purchase Consideration 2018 involved issuance of RPS, The Progosed Acquisition's
mode of payment does nat involve any preference shares to be issued and as such nb
amendmants to he Company's Constitution is requirsd; and

whilg the current mede of payment consists of cash congideration, it is not expecled to
hiave @ matenal impact on the Company's cash fow as the cash conslderation merely
constitines 11.65% of the total Purchase Cansideration.

Based on the key differences above. it appears that the prospects of the Propesed Acquisition
are favourable due 1o the following:

i}

{it)

(i

Imperium Residence (Block A) and Swiss-Bal Hotel [Block B} were completed in 19
February 2020 and 16 Oblober 2019 respeclively. As al the LPD, 1HP Groyp has
recélved progressive sales with 85.85% of the Senviced Apartment sold since its
iompletion;

from he date of valuabion (Le. Oclober 2020) up o the LPD, 19 oul of 120 unils of
unseld Serviced Apartments have been sold. This indicales that despite the orgoing
COVID:19 pandemic, the damand for Serviced Apsrfments ware not malerially
affected; and

the valuation on IMP Group in the Proposed Acquisition is aiso comparably lower and

ressonable a5 compared Yo Proposed Acquisition 2018 as the Proposed Aoguisition
2018 included Phase 2 lands which were ther subjected 1o reclamat™sn waorks,
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8.7

Premisad on the above, barring any unforeseen circumsiances, we are of the view that the
long term prospects of the IHP Group and Bina Puri Group pursuant lo the Proposed
Acquisifion appears to be favourable and are expected to improve its financial performance in
the future, mainly supported by:

{iy the Government's initiatives fo stimulate Malaysia’s econtimy and mitigate the impact
of COVIL19 and the MCO with the introduction of PRIHATIN, PENJANA, KITA
PRIHATIN, Budget 2021 and PERMALF,

i) the overview and outlook of the Malaysien sconomy and construction industry in
Malaysia as sel out in Sections 5.1 and §.2, Part A of the Circular, and

it} strategic location of KWRC Land, near Kuantan fown centre and has a beach frontaga.

Nonetheless, we wish to highlight that the construction and property development indusiries
are subject to uncerainties which are not within the Board's control, such as changes in
Governmert policias, changes in financing conditions and implementation of stricter standard
oparating procedures during the MCO period. The occurence of any of such evenls may
materially impact the construction and properly development industries and may adversely
affect the Group's financial performance.

Risk factors assoclated with the Proposed Acqulsition
We take note of the risk factors as disclosed in Section 8, Part A of the Circular as foliows:

(i) Ron-completion of the Proposed Acquisition;
{iEy Buziness and operational risk; and
{iii) investment risk,

Based on the above, we ate of the view that the risk Factors in relation lo the Proposed
Acquisition are-common risks associated with such fransactionsfinvestments. Furthermore, the
Proposed Acquisition will not materially change the risk profile of the business of Bina Puri as
IHP operates in the same industry as the Company. As such, Bina Puri will be exposéd 1o
similar business, operational and financial risks inherent in the indostry upon completion of the

Proposed Acquisition.

We wish ta highlight that, although measures may be taken by the Board to attempt to Umit all
such risks, no assurance can he given that one or a combination of such risk factors will not
crystallise, and give rise to malerial and adverse impact on the financial performancel/positon
or prospects of the Group.

In evaluating the Proposed Acquisition, non-interested sharsholders of Bina Puri should
carefully consider the risk faclkors as mentioned in Section 8, Parl A of the Circular prier to
vating on the resalution pertaining to the Proposed Agquisition at the forthcoming EGM of Bina
Puri. Non-interested shareholders of Bina Puri shouid also note that the risk factors mentioned
harein and Seclion 6, Part & of the Circular are rot meant 1o be extiaustive.

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

We have assessed and evaluated the Proposed Acquisition and our evaluation is set out in
Section 8 of this 1AL. Non-ierested shareholders of Bina Purl are advised o consider the
meriis and demerits of the Proposed Acquisition carefully based on all relevant and partinent
factors including those set out in this TAL and the Circular as well as ather publicly avallable
information prior to making a decisicn to vole on the resolution perfaining lo the Proposed
Acquisition,
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In curevaluation of the Propased Acquisition and in arriving al cur opinion, we have laken it
consideration various factors which are summarisad as follows:

g

(i}

{if)

vy

vl

fvi}

fvif)

e rationale for the Proposed Acqlisition is reasonable and is not detrimental 1o the
nén-interested shareholders of Bira Purt, which is set out in Section 8.1 of this 1AL;

the Purchase Considerstion s falr and reasonable fo the aon-interestad sharehtiders
of Bina Fur, which is set oul in Saction 8.2 of this IAL,

the lssue Price of RMO.085 per Consideration Share is justiffable and falr to the non-
interested shareholders of Hina Purd, which is et out in Section 6.3 of this 1AL,

the safient lerms of the SPA are reagopable and not detrimental 1o the nonnterested
sharaholders of Bing Pari, which mre sel out in Secion 8.4 of thig (AL

the financisl effects of the Proposed Acquisition are not detrimental to the interest of
e non-interested shareholders of Bina Purd, which are sel out in Seotion 6.5 of this

1AL,
the industry outlonk and prospests, which are seb out iy Section 6.6 of this 1AL, and

ihe risk tmctors in relation to the Proposad Acguisilion, which ars set out in Seclion 87
of this (AL

Premised on the foregoing and eur ovesall evaiuation and assessment df the Proposed
Acquisition based od Informiatior avaliable 1o U5 up to the LPD, weare of thé apinion that, taken
a8 @ whols, the Proposed Acoguisition s FAIR AND REASONABLE and s NOT
DETRIMENTAL tg the non-intarested sharehoiders of Bina Puri.

Apcordingly, we recommend the non-interested sharsholders of Bina Pud {o VOTE IW
FAVOUR of the resolulion peraining to the Proposed Acquisition to be fsbled at the
forthcoming EGM.

Yours faithhaly,
for and on behailf of
WIDF AMANAH INVESTMENT BANK BERHAD

DATUK DOMINIC SILVA JOSEPHINE KONG
Crief Executive Officer Acting Head
Corporate Financs

87



APPENDIX | - INFORMATION ON IHP

1. HISTORY AND BUSINESS

|HP was incorporated in Mataysta on 1 Oclober 1984 under the Act a3 4 private limited company
and has contmenced its business operations since {he date of incorporation.

The IHP Group is principally involved iri property development, project management and
property management. The principal activities of the subsidiaries and associated companies
are set out in Section 5 of this Appendix.

2. SHARE CAPITAL
As at the LPD, the issued share capital of IHP is RM4,545,150 comprising 4,545,150 IHP
Shares. As at the LPD, there s only one class of sharsg in IHP,

3. SHAREHOLDERS

As at the LPD, the sharehisiders of IHP angd their shareholdings aré as follows:-

Tan Siti Datuk THSM Malaysiarn 568,146 | 1250 | 999,933 b 2200
Bina Puit Properties Mataysia 546418 | 12.00 ; -l
Fay Hotk-Les Tataysian 5226921 11.60 : -
Dr. Tory Tant? ialaysian 545418 | 1200 ; -
CheoChet Lan @ Chow Sak Nam | Malaysian 545417 | 12.00 .
Datuk Matthew Teei" Malaysian 454515 | 1000 | 1,113,564 | 2450

Low Seng Swee Malaysiab 454515 | 1000 - -

| Syarikat Masyakin Sdn Bhd' Malaysia 454515 | 1040 - -

- Datuk Tee Hoek Hin'® Malaysian 227257 f 500 . -

- Tee Kai Soon" Malsysian 227,257 | 500 . -

{1 Boing the Vendors.

{2 Based on the issued share capital of 4,545, 150 1HP Sharps as af the LPD.

{3) Dlepmed intarested by virtie of his infarest in Bina Pur Froperties via his shareholdings in Bina
Puri and fils son's direct sharehaldings in IHP.

{4) Deemud inlerested by virtue of his interest in Bina Puri Propeffiss via his shareholdings in Bina
Furi ard his Tather's divect shareholdings in HP.

[THE REST OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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APPENDIX | ~ INFORMATION ON {HP (CONT'D)

4,

DIRECTORS

 Tan Sn Datuk THSW
| Tay Hock Lae
| Adnanbin Abduliah, PPN, PJK

- Dr. Tony Tant™

Gheo Chet Lan @ Chow Sak
Nam

Datuk Neatihew Ted!!

1 {Alternate Dirgctor to Tan Sif
Dmtuk THS)

Ghow Chee Seng
{Altsrnate Dirpcior 16 Chets
Chef Lan-@ Chow Sk Nam}

Malaysian
Malaysian
Malaysian

Malaysian

" Malaysian

Malaysian

Malaystan

bE8. 1486

545418
SA5 A7

454 516

12 50
11,50

12.00
12.00

10,00 |

As at the LPD, the directors uf IHP dnd their shareholdings are as follows:-

#4113 564

24.50

1] Beifg the Yendors.
i Based on the issusti share capital of 4.545.150 IHP Sharesas al the LFD.
Dgemed [fferested by vidue- of his intgrest i Bipa Purt Properties via bis shareholdings in Bina

Furi and Kis son's direst sharoholdings in 1HP.

Fuii and his father's dicect sharehokiings in HP.

lteal Heights Sdn Bhd 8 Docember 1088
’ Malaysia

ldenl Heights Property & Aprit 2005/

Managemint Sdn Bhd Malaysia

ideal Heights 13 July 2001 4

Dewslopment Sdn Bhd tAalaysia

ideal Heights Hotaf | 7 September 2012 ¢

Management Sdn Bhd | Walaysia

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

100:100

5000000

1,000,060

Imperium Residence
FProperty Mansgement
Sdn Bhd

& June 2018/
Malaysia

1.000

108

T

70

160

naciive

Deenied interestod by virfue of His interest in Bina Puri Properties via his shareholdings in Bing
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APPENDIX | —~ INFORMATION ON IHP {CONT'D)

6. HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following table Sets out a summary of the finaniclal infonnation of the IHP Group for the
FYE 31 December 2017, FYE 31 December 2018 and FYE 31 Dacember 2019:-

Revenue 26,438 | 48,487 85,526
Profit / (Loss) before taxation 81 2,077 {1.578;
- Profit after taxation / {LAT) ‘ 562 1,371 | {2,109}
Profit after taxstion f (LATrattibuteble lo owners of HP 186 853 {2,1862)
Mo. of IHP Shares in issue {000} 4,545 4,545 | 4,545
Netaamings per share # (LPSY (RM) 0.04 | 0.21 | {(0AB) |
Issued share capital 4,545 | 4546 | 4,545
Sharehaoitlers' funds / NA 13377 14,330 12,188
NA per shars [RWVD) 2.94 316 168
Current ratio {fimes} 1.51 1.28 1.23
Tﬁial ﬂquﬁ? fﬁ;}&u ‘18,121 14&%5
Bomrowings 23023 2800 ¢ B,182
Gearing {trhes) 127 0.15 043

The audied financial statements of IHP for FYE. 31 December 2017, FYE 31 December 2018
and FYE 31 December 2019 have been prepared in accordance with applicable approved
Malayslan accounting standards and there was no audit qualification for the respective years
undler review. IHP has not adopled any accounting policies which are peculiar to its operations
for the respective years under review.

Commentary
)  FYE 31 December 2019 vs. FYE 31 December 2018

IHP Group’s revenue for FYE 31 December 2019 increased by 82.98% to RM85.53
milfion as compared fo the previnus financial year. This was mainly due o the
recognition of progress billings from the sale of the: IHP Group’s serviced apartments
at its project at the Kuanian Waterfront Resori City which was completed and handed
aver to the end-buyers in October 2018 and February 2020 for Block B and Block A
respectively.

Despite the increase in revenue, the IHP Group recorded a LAT of RM2.11 million
compared 1o a profit after taxafion of RIVH .37 million in the previous. financial vear,
mainly due 1o a loss from the disposal of #s equily interest in ldeat Mining Sdn Bhd,
Ideal Minerals Sdn Bhd and ideal Meta! Alloy Sdn Bhd upon the IHP Group’s exit from
the mining and silicon manganese manufacturing business and an increase in other
operating expenses due {p expenses assodiaied with the commencement of the holel
operation such as hotel staff cost.
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APPENDIX | - INFORMATION ON IHP (CONT'D)

(if)

(iir}

FYE 31 December 2018 vs, FYE 31 December 2017

iHP Group's revenue for FYE 31 December 2018 increased by 75.83% to RM46.49
rinilfion as compared to the:previous financial year, This was mainly due to higher sales
and progress billings from the IHP Group's project mentioned above as well as higher
sales of ranganese.

in line- with the higher revenue, IHP Group’s PAT increased by 143.85% to RM1.37
milion as compared to the: previous financial year. This was mainly atiributabie to
higher contribution from the IHP Group's project mentionad above and an increase in
other operating income from fees earned by the IHP Group's project management and
preperty management divisions.

FYE 31 Decambsr 2017 vs FYE 31 December 2016

IHP Group's revenue for FYE 31 December 2017 increased by 9.32% to RM28.44
million as compéred to the previous financial year. This was mainly due to higher sales
and progress biliings from tha IHP Group's project mentioned above.

Despite the higher revenue, IHP Group’s PAT decreased by 40.90% to RM0.56 million

as compared to thie previous financial year. This was mainly atiributable to higher-cost
incurred for the [HP Group's project mentioned above.

[THE REST OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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APPENDIX ill -~ AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IHP FOR FYE 31
DECEMBER 2019

Company No.
198401015146 (127701-I)

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATUTORY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2019
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APPENDIX Ill - AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINARCIAL STATEMENTS OF IHP FOR FYE 31
DECEMBER 2018 (CONT'D)

Company No.
198401015146 (127701-T))

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.

(Incorporated in Malaysig)
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors hereby submit their report to the members tegether with the sudited financial
statements of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2019.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Company are property development and property management.

The principal aclivities of its subsidiaries are shown in Note 9 (o the financial statemeitts.

There were no significant changes in (he nature of these activities during the financial year.

Financial results
Group Company
RM BM
{Loss)/profil for the financial ycar (2,109 244) 3,605,426
Attribuable to:
Owners of the Company (2,162,177 3,605,426
Non-contrelling interests 52,933 -
{2,109.244) 3,605,426
Dividends

No dividends were paid or declared by the Company since 31 December 2018,

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for the financial year ended
31 December 2019.

Reserves and provisions

There were no material transfers 10 or from reserves and provisions during the financial year.
Issue shares and debentures

There were no changes in e issued and paid up capital and debentures of the Company during
the financial year. '
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DECEMBER 2018 (CONT'D})

Company No.
198401015146 (127701-10

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.

(hicorporated in Malaysia)
DIRECTORS® REPORT (CONTINUED)

Options granted over unissued shares and debentures

No options were granted to any person to take up unissued ordinary shares or debentures of the
Company during the financial year.

Directors
The Directors who have held office since 1he date of the lasi report dre:

Tan Sri Daruk Tee Hock Seng, JP

Tay Hock Lee

Adnan Bin Abdullah, PPN, PIK

Dr. Tan Cheng Kiat

Cheo Cligt Lan @ Chiow Sak Nam, KMN

Datuk Matthew Tee Kai Woon (Alternate Diregtor to Tan Sd Datuk Tee Hock Seng, JP)

Dato’ Tan Seng Hu (Resigned as alternate Director 1o Dr, Tan Cheng Kiat en 20 March 2019)

Chow Chee Seng  (Appointed as-altemate Director 1o Cheo Chet Lan @& Chow Sak Nam,
KMN on 31 December 2019)

In accordance with the Company’s Article of Association, Cheo Chel Lan @ Chow Sak Nam,
KMN, retires at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for
re-election.

Directors’ beneflts

During the financial yéar, no arrangements subsisted to which the Group and the Company is
a party, being arrangements with the object or objects of enabling the Directors of the Group
and of the Corpany to acquite benefits by means of the aequisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director has received or become entilled to
receive a benefit (other than Direclors’ remuneration disclosed in the financial statements) by
reason of a contract made by Lthe Company or a related corporation with the Director or with a
firm of which he is amember, or with a company in which he has a substantial financial interest.
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DECEMBER 2019 (CONT'D)

Company No.
198401015146 (127701-1)

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS® REPORT (CONTINUED)

Directors’ inferests in shares

According to the repister of Direciors' shareholdings required to be kept by the Company under
Section 59 of the Comypanies Act 2016, the interests of the Directors in the office at the end of the
financial year in shares in the Group and the Company and its telated corporations were as

fallows:
Number of ordinery shares

At 01.01.2014 Bought Seald At31.12.2619
Share in the Company
Direct interest
Tan Sri Datuk Tee Hock Seng, JP 568,146 - - 568,146
Dr. Tan Cheng Kjat 545418 . - 545,418
Tay Hock Lee 522,692 - - 522 692
Cheo Chel Lan @ Chow Sak Nam,

KMN 545417 - - 45417
Daruk Matthew Tee Kai Woon 454 515 - - 454 515
Indirect interest by virtue of shares

held iy compemies in which a

directer has inrerest
Tan Sri Datuk Tee Hock Seng, JP 545418 - - 345418
Dr. Tan Cheng Kiat 545,418 - - 545,418
Datuk Matthew Tee Kai Woon 545418 - - 545418

No other Dirtector in the olFice at the end of the financial year held any interest in shares in the
Company and ifs related cotporations.
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DECEMBER 2019 (CONT'D}

Company No.
198401015146 (127701-1)

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS® REPORT (CONTINUED)

Statutory information on the fnancial statemients

Before the statements of comprehensive income and statements of financial position of the
Group and of the Company were made oul, the Directors took reasonable sieps:

(a)

(b)

to ascerfain thal proper action had been taken in relation to the writing ofT of bad dehis
and the making of allowance for impairment and satisfied themselves that all known
bad debts had been written off and that adequate allowance for impairment had been
made [or doubtful debts; and

to ensure Lhat any current assets which were mlikely to realise in the ordinary course
of business their values as shown in the accounting records of the Group and of the
Company had been written down to an amount which they might be expected so to
realise.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumsiances:

(2)

(b

(c)

which would render the amounts written off for bad debts or the amount of the
allowance for doubiful debts in ihe financial statemenis of the Gromp and of the
Company madequate to any sabstantial extent; or

which would render the values attributed to current assets in the financial stalemenis of
the Group and of the Company misleading; or

which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation el assets
or liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate.

Ne contingent or -other liability has become enforceable or is likely t0 become enforceable
within the period of twelve months afier the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of
the Directors, will or may substantially affeci the ability of the Group and of the Company to
meet their obligations when they fall due.

Al the dale of this repori, there does not exist:

(2)

(b}

any.charge on the assets of the Group er of (he Company which has arisen since the end
of the financial year which secures the liability: of any other person; or

any contingenl liability of the Group or of the Campany which has arisen since the end

of the financial year.
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DECEMBER 2019 (CONT'D)

Company No.
198401015146 (127701-1))

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
(Incorperated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS® REPORT (CONTINUED)

Other statutory information

At the date of this repor:, the Direclors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt
with. in this reperi or the financial siatements which would render eny ameunt stated in the
financial statements misleading.

In the opinion of the Directors:

()  the results of the Group's and of the Company's operations during the financial year
were not substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and
unusual nature; and

(b)  there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of
this report any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely to alfect

substantially the resulls of the operations of the Group and of the Company for the
financial year in which this report is made.

Indemnifying Directors, officers or auditors.

No indemunilies have been given or insurance premiums paid, during or since the end of the
financial year, for any reason who is or has been the Directors, officers or auditors of the Group
and the Company

Subsequent events

Detail of subsequent ¢vents for the financial year are disclosed in Note 29 to the financial
statements.
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DECEMBER 2019 (CONT'D)
Company Mo,
198401015146 (127701-D)

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Melaysia)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)

Auditors
The auditors, RSL PLT, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

The details of the auditors’ remuneration are disclosed in Note 6 in the financial statements.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Directors,

W
Cheo Chet Lan @ Chew Sak Nam, KMN

Director

Selayang
28 August 2020
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Company Ne.

19840101546 (12770119

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
{Incorporated in Malaysiz)

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS |
PURSUANT TO SECTION 251(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2015

We, Tun Sri Datuk Tee Hock Seng, JP and Chee Chet Lan @ Chow Sak Nam, KMN, baing
iwo of the Directors of Tdeal Heights Propertics Sdn. Bhd., state that, in the opinion of the
Direclors, the financial staternents set ont on pages 12 t6 94 are drawn up 50 as to give # true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December
2019 and af the financial performance and cash Fows of the Group and of the Company for the
financial vear ended cn that date in accordance with the Malaysian Financial Reporting
Standards, International Finsncial Reporting Standards-and the requirements of the Companies
Act 2016 in Malaysia,

Signed: on behalf of the Board of Directors in secordance with a resolution.of the Directors,

Tan St Datrk’ e Sing, IP Cheo Cher Lan @ Chow Sak Nam, KMN
Director ; Director

Selayang

28 August 2020

STATUTORY DECLARATION

PURSUANT TO SECTION 251(1)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2616

1, Tas S Datuk Tee Hock Seng, JP, being the Direstor primarily responsible for the finuncial
management of Ideal Heights Properties $dn. Bhd.,, do solemnly and sincerely deelare that the
finaneial statements set ot on pages 12 fo 94 are, to the best of my knowledge and belief,
cotrect, and [ make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true, and
by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

E};i‘%ctor
Su! A : 11 Datuk Tee Hoek Seng, JP at
Klang in the State of Selangor Dan .

Before ine,

COMMISSIONER FOR OATHS
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Cemparny No.

198401015146 (127701-1) R SL PLT . N
1 WML 0O

Clurm:u‘i_Arn»m]l.‘nu:‘.- “AF0TH
1514 Jalien Mhime Topa Laone,

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE Tamaix Rash, 41300 Klusg,
MEMBERS OF IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES Selusghs, Maluykin.
SDN. BHD. ek 503 39M 8668
{Iocorporated in Malnysia) Emel; n\lhfﬁl;:];éﬁifnui

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinton

We have audited the financial statements of Ideal Heighis Properiies Sdn. Bhd,, which
comprise the staiements of financial position as at 31 December 2019 of the Group and of the
Company, and the statements of comprehensive income, statemenis of changes in equity and
statements of cash flows of thé Group and of the Company {or the year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out
on pages 12 (p 94.

In cur opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and [air view of the finaneial
position of the Group and of the Company as at 3] December 2019, and of their financial
performance and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Malaysian
Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Swandards and the
requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audif in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
Intemational Standards on Auditing. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Stalements section of
our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriaie
to provide a basis for our gpinion.

We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws {(on
Professional Ethics, Conduct and Practice)} of the Malaysian Institute of Accounlanis (“By-
Laws™) and the Tnternational Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Siandards)
(“IESBA Code™, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilites in accordance with
the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors ' Report Thereon

The Direciors of the Company are responsible [or the other infotmation. The other information
comprises the Directors” Report, but does not include the financial statements of the Group and
of the Company and our auditers’ reperl thereon,

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the
Dirgetors” Report and we de not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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DECEMBER 2019 (CONT'D)

Compeny No.
198401015146 (127701-D)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TQO THE MEMBERS OF
IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD. (CONTINUED)
{(Incorporated in. Malaysia)

Informativin Other than the Financial Statements and Anditors” Report Thereon {continied)

In connection with our audit of the {inancial statements of the Group and of the Company, our
responsibility is o read the Directors’ Report and, in doing so, consider wheiher the Directors'
Report is materially inconsistent with the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
the Directors” Reporl, we are required ¢ repori that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard,

Responsibifities of the Directars for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the
Group and of the Company that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian
Financial Reporting Standards, Inlernatiomal Financial Reporting Swuandards and the
requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for
such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements of the Group and of the Company thal are free from material misstatement,
whether dué to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group®s-and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem,
disclosing, as applicable, mauers related to going congern and using the soing concern basis of

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditors® Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemenis of the
Group and of (he Company as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and ta issue an auditors’ report that includes oor opinion, Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audil conducted in accordance with
approved standards on auditing in Mglaysia and International Standards on Auditing will
always detecl a miaterial miisstatemen? when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregale, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the ecenomic decisions of users taken on the bagis of these financial
statements.

9
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DECEMBER 2019 (CONT'D)

Company No.
198401015146 (127701-TH)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT TQ THE MEMBERS OF
IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN, BHD. (CONTINUED)
(EIncomporaied in Milaysia)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

As pan of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and
Iniernational Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(a)

(b}

(c)

(d}

(e

(f)

Identify and assess the risks of material misstaterent of the financial stalements of the
Group and of the Company, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive 1o those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting [rom error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, infentional omissions, misrepreseniations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant {o the audit in order to design audit
procedures thal are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and the Company’s internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriaténess of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accouming estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors,

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors” use of the going concem basis of
acecounting and, based on the audil evidence ohtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s or
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that 8 material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the rélated
disclosures: in the fingncial statemems of the Group and of the Company or, if such
disclosures are inadequaie,. to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up 1o the date ef our auditors™ tepor. However, futire events
or conditions may cause the Group or the Company to cease to continue as a going
concer.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of
the Group and of the Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company represent the underlying transactions and
evenls in 2 manner that achieves fair presentglion.

(Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
gdtities or business aclivities within the Group 10 express an opinion on thé financial

staiements of the Group. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

1¢
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Company No,
198401015146 (127701-D)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD. (continued)
(Incarporated in Malaysia)

Auditors’ Responsibifities for the Audit of the Fincmcial Staterients {continued)

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matiers, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal contral that we identify during our audit.

Other Matters

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance ‘with
Section 266 of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not
assuime responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

Ry -

RSLPLT
(LLPO020047-LCA & AF-0071)
Chartered Accoumniants

DATO® LEE TECK HUA
(N.a. 02374/08/2021 J)
Chartered Accountant

Klang
28 August 2020
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APPENDIX Il - AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IHP FOR FYE 31
DECEMBER 2018 (CONT’D)

Cumpany No.
198401015146 (127701-IN

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
{Incorperated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FQR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Group Company
Note 2019 2018 2019 2018
RM RM RM RM
Revenue 5 85,525,983 46,487,042 - -
Cost of sales (R3.190.470) (42.281.95]) - -
Gross profit 2335513 4205091 - -
Other operating income 4,878,256 2,542,161 4 839,604 1,641,789
Administrative cxpenses {1,342 838) (2.6432.88%) (361.,408) {621,02%)
Other operaring expenses (7408846  (2,081,28T) (726 402) (9210,52%)
(Loss)/profit from operations (1,537.915) 2022077  3.751.794 110,235
Finance expenses (39,709} (50} - -
Share of result in associate, net of tax 10 - 54,991 - -
(Loss¥proflt before fax 6 (1.577.624) 2077018  3751,794 110,235
Tax 7 (531,620 (706,065} (146,368) {23.686)
(Loss)/profit [or the financial year (2,109.244) 1,370,953 3.605426 86,549
Other comprehensive income - - - -
Total comprehensive (lossy
ingome for the financial year (2,109244) 1370953  3,605.426 86,549
(Loss)/profit after tax attributable to: ‘
- Owners of the Company £2.162,1 'I?) §52,567 2,605,426 26,549
- Non-controiling interests 52933 418 386 - -
{2.109.244) 1,370,553 3,605,426 , #6549
Total comprehensive (loss)income
attributable to: _ _
- Cwners of the Company {2,162,177) 052,567 3,605,426 86,549
- Nog-controlling interests 52.933 418386 - -
(2,109,244} 1,370,953 3,605,426 _ 86,549

The notes on pages 19 (0 94 form part of these financial staternents
12
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APPENDIX 1l - AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IHP FOR FYE 31
DECEMBER 2019 (CONT’D)

Company No.
198401015146 (127701-10)

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
{Incorporated in Malayeia)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

Note 2019 018
RM RM
ASSETS
Noop-current assets
Property, plant and eqnipment E 10,935,625 3,641,692
Invesiment in associates 10 - 5.061,706
Goodwill o1 consalidation 11 - -
Deéferred tax assels 12 141,057 203,927
11,076,722 8,907,325
Current assets _
Inveniories 13 211,925 -
Inventory properties under development 14 47,333,053 45,479,493
Trade and othar receivables 15 27,293,433 21,123,183
Tax recoverable 23816 39385
Fixed deposits placed with a licensed bank 16 25008 -
Cash and bank balances 17 8517748 6,582,135
83,404,975 73,188,796
TOTAL ASSETS 94,481,697 82.096,121

The notes on pages 19 1o 94 form parl of these financial siatements
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APPENDIX Il - AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IHP FOR FYE 31
DECEMBER 2019 (CONT'D)

Company No.
198401015146 (127701-T)

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
(Encorperated in Malaysin)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 (CONTINUED)

Note 2019 1018
RM RM
Equity
Share capiial 18 4,545.150 4,545,150
Retained earnings 7,622 655 9,784,832
Equity atiributable to owners of the Company 12,167 805 14,329,982
Noa-conlrolling inlcrests 2237304 3,791,176
TOTAL EQUITY 14,405,109 ¥8,121,158
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other paysbles 19 6.555.137 7,159,363
Service charge deposits 20 199,472 199,112
Borrowings 21 5,553,468 -
Defemed tax liabilities 12 - 693
12,308,077 7359168
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 51,235,139 30,025,540
Contract liabilities 22 15,647,731 22,415,146
Amount due to Directors 23 230,000 1,189,217
Borroiwings 21 628,695 2,590,332
Tax payables _ 26,946 395 560
067,768,511 56,615,795
TOTAL LIABILITIES 80,076,588 61,974 963
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 94 481,697 82,096,121

The notes on pages 19 to 94 form part of these {inancial statements
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APPENDIX 1l - AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF |HP FOR FYE 31
DECEMBER 2019 (CONT'D)

Company No.
198401615146 (127701-1))

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

Note 2019 2018
RM EM
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipmeént 8 3.428.350 3,560,392
Investment in subsidiary companies 9 1,737.505 4,137,505
Investment in associates 141 - 45,000
Deferred 1ax assets 12 71817 201,114
7237712 8,144,011
Current assets
Trade and other reecivables 15 5,981 439 2446506
Tax recoverable 3088 3,985
Cash and bank balances 17 . 83,852 34915
6,069 276 2 485,406
TOQTAL ASSETS 13,306 988 10,629:417
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 18 4,545,150 4,545,150
Retained earnings 6,601,201 2,995,775
TOTAL EQUITY 11,146,351 7.540,925
Nun-i:urrent liabilities
Service charge deposils 20 199,472 199,112
199,472 194112
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 1,704 219 2,366,176
Amount due to Directors 23 230,000 505,000
Tax payable 26,846 18,204
1,961,165 2,889 360
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,160,637 3,088,492
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 13,306 988 10629417

The notes on pages 19 10 94 form part of these financial statements
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APPENDIX Il - AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IHP FOR FYE 31
DECEMBER 2019 (CONT'D)

Campany No.
198401015146 (127701-D)

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
{Incorperated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

‘Totsl
Distribotnhie atiributabke: to Non-
Ontinary Retained owners of the confraling Total
Group share capital carnings Compuny intervsts equity
RM RM RM RM RM
At4.01 January 2018 4,545 150 8,832,265 13377415 3,372,790 16,750,205
Total comprehensive
income for the financial
yodr - 952,567 952.567 418,386 1,370,953
Ad 31 December 2018 4,545,150 9 784,832 14,329,982 3.91.176 ﬁ 121,158
A401 January 2019 4,545,150 9,784,832 14,329,982 3,790.176 18,121,158
Disposal of subsidiary - - «  (1,606,805) (1,606,805}
Total comprehensive
(loss)income for the
fingngial year - (2.162,177) (2,162,177) 52,933 (2,109.244)
At 3) December 2019 4,545,150 7,622,655 12167805 2237304 14,405,109
Distribuiable
Ordinary Retained Todul
Compawy share capital earnings equity
M M RM
At 01 January 2018 4,545,150 2.909,226 7454376
Total comprehensive income for the fnancial year - 86,549 86,549
At 3! Decernber 2018 4545150 2995775 7,540,925
At 01 January 2019 4,545,130 28995 775 7.540,025

Totl comprebensive income for the Gnancial year 3,605,426 3,605.426

At 31 December 2019 4,545,150 6,601,201 11,146,351

The notes onpages 19 to 94 form part of these financial statements
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APPENDIX Il - AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF |HP FOR FYE 31
DECEMBER 2019 (CONT'D)

Corapany No.
198401015146 (127701-10

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.

(Incorperated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS .
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Cash flows from operating
activitics
(Loss}/profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Share of resull in associdtes

Interest income

Interesi expenses

Adlowance tor expected credit
losses

Reversal of allowance for expected
credit losses

Dividerid income

Loss/(gainy an disposals of
investment in:

- subsidiary

- associales

Property, plant and equipment:

- depréciation

- gain ou disposals

Operaling profit/(loss} before
working capital changes

Changes in working capilal:

Inventories. -

Inventory onder properties
developmerit

Trade and other receivables

Contract assels

Trade and other payables

Contract lisbilities

Security charge deposits

Amoont due to Directors

Cagh penerated from/(used in)
operations

Interest paid

Tax refund

Tex paid

Net cash from/{used in) operating
activities

Group Coempany
Note 19 208 1019 2018
RM RM RM RM

(1,577.624) 2,077,018 3,751,794 110,235
- (54.991) - -
(138.131) (83.527) (55.258) (33.005)
39.709 50 - -

- 408,247 . .

(98,556) (188,303) (98,556) (188,303}
(225.000) (360,000) (225000) (360,000}
833,842 - (976.365) -
1.996,787 - (2.019.919) -
177,163 182,686 132,078 134,056
(999) (30.998) (999) -
1.007,191 1950, 182 507,775 (337,017)
(211.925) - ] ]
(1853.560)  (22.779.578) - -
(13.854.662)  (6,730429) (3436377 162,290
- 27353691 - -
24,987,285 4,351,898 (661957 (155,655)
(6.767,415) 22,415,146 - -
360 (81,603) 360 (81,603)
(725.000) (187.516) (275.000) (50.000)
2,582,274 26,291,791 (3.865,199)  (461.985)
(39.709) (50) - :

- 35,415 - 35415
(661,473) (476.944) (8.329) -
1881092 25850212 (3,873.528) _ (426,570)

The notes on pages 19 10 94 form part of these financial siatements
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APPENDIX 1ll - AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS OF IHP FOR FYE 31
DECEMBER 2019 (CONT'D)

Company No.
T9R401G15146 (127701-10

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malavsia)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3t DECEMBER 2019 (CONTINUED)

_ Group Contpany
Note 2019 2018 2019 1018
RM RM RM RM
Cash flows from nvesting activities
Dividend received 225,000 360,000 225,000 360.000
Purchasc of property, piant and
equipment {1,550,740) (30,695) (77 -
Proceeds rom disposal of property,
plant and equipment 1.600 31,900 1,000 -
Proceeds from disposal of investment
in subsidiary - - 1,576,363 -
Proceeds (rom disposal of investment
im associates 2,064.919 - 2,064,919 -
Disposzl of subsidiary, et of cash
disposed 9 1,566,561 - - -
Placement of fixed deposits (25.000) - -
Interest income réceived 138,13} 83,527 55258 33,005
Net cash from invesling activitics 2419871 443,832 3,922 465 393,005
Cash Nows from financing activities.
Net repayment of term loans and
bridging loans (2.365,350) (20,423 817) - -
Repayment of hire purchases payables - (8,669) - -
Net cash used in finaneing activities (2.365,350) (20.43Z2.486) - ~
Net increase/{decreaye) in cash and
cash gquivalents 1.935613 5.861,558 48,937 (33,565)
Cash and cash equivalents as at
01 January 6,582,135 720,577 34915 68,480
Cash and cash equivalents as at
31 December 24 8.517.748 6,582,135 83,852 34915

The notes on pages 19 1¢ 94 form part of these financial statements
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APPENDIX Il - AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF |IHP FOR FYE 31
DECEMBER 2019 (CONT'D)

Comipany No.
L9R4D1015146 (127701-T

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 General information
The Company is a private limited Liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of the Directors an

28 August 2020,

Registered office: Principal place of business:
Wisma Bina Puri No. 1 & 2, Jalan Bukit Jdaman 8/1
88, Jalan Bukit Tdaman 8/1 Bukit Tdaman, 68100 Selayang
Bukil 1daman, 68100 Selayang Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia.
Selangor Darul Fhsan, Malaysia.

2 Basis of préparation

(a)  Staternent of comnpliance

The financial statements ol the Group and the Company have been prepared in accordaiice with
the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”), International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFR8s™) in Malaysia and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Adoption of new and amendments/improvements to MFRSs and new IC interpretation
(*“IC 1nt™)

The accounting policies adopted by the Group and the Company are consistent with those
adopted in the previous financial year except for the adoption of the following new MFRSs,
amendments/improvements to MFRSs and new IC Int with the efféct fiom the financial year
beginning on or after 01 January 2019:

Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after
MFRS 16: Leases 01 January 2019
IC Interpretation 23:; Uncertainty aver Income 1ax Treahnenis (1 January 2019
Amendments to MFRS 3: Previousty fHeld Interest in a Joint 01 January 2019
Operation (Anmual Improvements 1o MFRS Standards
2015-2017 Cycle)
Aniendments to MFRS 9. Prepayments Features with Negative 01 January 2019
Compensation
19
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APPENDIX Il - AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS OF IHP FOR FYE 31
DECEMBER 2019 (CONT'D)

Cumpany No.
198401015146 (127701-I))

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
(Incorperated in Malzysin)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basis of preparation (continued)
(a)  Statement of compliance (continued)

Adoption of new and amendmenis/improvements to MFRSs and new IC interpretation

(*IC Int™) (continned)
Effective for ananusl
periods beginning
on or after
Amendments to MFRS 11: Previously Held Interest ina Joint 01 January 2019
Operation (Annual Improvements o MFRS Standards
20152017 Cyele)
Amendments to MFRS 112: fneome Tax Conseguences of 01 January 2019
Pavments on Financial Iestruments Classified as Equity
(Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2015-204 7 Cyele)
Amendments to MFRS 119: Plan Amendmenr, Curtailiment or 01 January 2019
Seltlement.
Amendments to MFRS 123: Borrowing Custs Eligible for (01 Jannary 2019
Caplialisation (Annual Improvements o MFRS Standards
2015-2017 Cycle)
Amendments 1o MFRS |28: Long-Term Interesis in Associates 01 January 2019

and Joint Venttires

The adoption of the new MFRSs, amendments/improvements to MFRSs and new IC Int did
not have significant impact on the financial statements of the Group and the Company.
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APPENDIX Il - AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IHP FOR FYE 31

DECEMBER 2019 (CONT'D)

Ca:_npany No.
19R401015146 (127701-T0)

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.

(Incorperatzd in Malaysin)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)  Statement of compliance (continued)

New and amendments/improvements to MFRSs and IC Interpretation issued but not yet

effective and have not been carly adopted

The standards and interpretations that are issued but not yat effective [or the Group and the
Company are disclosed below. The Group and the Company intends {9 adopt these standards,

if applicable, when they become effective.

Amendments.tc MFRS 3: Definition of a Business
Amendments to MFRS 9, MFRS 139 and MFRS 7: Interest Rate

Bemchmark Reform

Amendments 1o MFRS 10 and MFRS 108: Definition of

Marerial

Amendmeints to References to Conceptual Framework in MFRS

Standards

Amendment to MFRS 16: Covid-19 - Related Concessions
MFRS 17 and Amendments: Jnsurance Contracts
Amendments to MFRS 10}: Classification of Liabilities as

Currenl or Non-Current

Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2018-2020
Amendments to MFRS 3: References lo the Concepiual

Framework

Amendments to MFRS 116: Property, Plant and Equipment -

Proceeds before Infended Use

Amendments to MFRS 137: Provisions, Contingent Liabiities
and Contingent Assets - Onerous Coniract- Cost of Fulfilling a

Contact

Amendments to MFRS 10 and MFRS 128: Sale or
Caontribution of dssets berween an Investor and its Asseciate

or Joint Vennire

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after

01 January 2020
01 January 2020

01 January 2020
01 January 2020

01 June 2020
01 January 2023
01 January 2023

01 Jammary 2022
01 January 2022

¢1 January 2022

01 January 2022

Deferrad

The Directors expect that the adoption of the above-mentioned standards,
amendments/improvements and interpretations will bave no material impact an the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company in the period of initial application.
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APPENDIX Il - AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IHP FOR FYE 31
DECEMBER 2019 (CONT'D)

Company No.
T9R401015146 (127701-1))

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TOQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Busis of preparation (continued)

(b) Basis of measurement

The [inancial stateinents of the Group and of the Company have been prepared under the
historical cost convention except as disclosed in this swmmary of sigpificant accounting
policies.

(¢)  Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM"), which is the Group’s and
the Company’s functonal currency.

(d)  Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with MFRS requires management 1o
miake judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of aceounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Acinal resulis may differ
from these estimates.

Estimawes and undetlying assumption are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
aceounting esiimales ére recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any
future periods affected.

The areas invelving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are signifieant 1o the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4 (o the financial
statenients.
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APPENDIX [l ~ AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF |HP FOR FYE 31
DECEMBER 2019 (CONT'D)

Company No.
198401015146 (127701-13)

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malavsia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Basis of consolidation
(1) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities, including structured entities, controlled by Lhe Company. The
financial statements of subsidiaties are included in the consolidated Anancial statements ffom
the date that conirol commetices uniil the date that conirel ceases.

The Group conuols an entity when it is exposed, or has righss, (o variable retumns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to afféct thgse returns through its power over
the entity. Potential voting rights are considered when assessing conirol only when such rights
are substantive. The Group also considers it has.de facto power over an invesiee when, despite
0ot having the majority of voting rights, it has the current ability 1o direct the actvifies of the
invesize that significantly aflect the invesiee’s retum.

Investment in subsidiaries are measured in the Company’s statement of financial position at
cost less any impairment losses, niless e invesiment is classified 4s held for sale or
distribution. The cost of investment includes transaction costs.

(ii) Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method Fom the acquisition
date, which is the dale on which control is transferred to the Group.

For new acquisitiens, the Group measures the cost of goodwill at the acquisition date as:

the (air value of the consideration transferred; plus
the recognised amount of any nom-controlling interest in the acquiree; plus
if the business combination iz achieved in stages, the fair value of the existing
equity interest in the acquire; less

. the net recognised amount (penerally fair value) of the identifiable assels
acquired and lizbilities assumed.
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APPENDIX Il - AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF |HP FOR FYE 31
DECEMBER 2019 (CONT'D)

Cﬂmpuny No.
198401015146 (127701-1))

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
(Incorperated in Maiaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(a) Bagis of consolidation (continued)

(ii}  Business combinations (continued)

The secotmting policy for goedwill is set out in Note 3(b) to the financial staiements.

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

For each business combination, the Group elects whether it measures the non-¢ontrolling
interest in the acquire either at fair value or at the proporiionate share of the acquiree’s
identifisble net assets al the acquisition date,

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that
ithe Group incurs in connection with a businéss combinalion dre expensed as incurmed.

(ili)  Acquisitions of non-centrolling interests

The Group accomnts for zll changes in its ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result
in 2 loss of contro! as equity transactions between the Group and its non-controlling interest
holders. Any difference between the Group's share of net assets before and afier the change,
and any consideration received or paid, is adjousted 1o or against Group reserves.

(iv)  Loss of control

Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the
former subsidiary, amy non-controlling interests and the other components of equity related to
thie subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognised in profit or
loss. If the Group retains any interes! in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured
al [uir value at the date that control is lost. Subsequemly, it Is accounted for as an equity-
accounied mvestee or as aveilable-for-sale financial asset depending on the level of influgnce
retained.
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APPENDIX Il - AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IHP FOR FYE 31
DECEMBER 2018 (CONT'D)

Cumipany No.
19R401015146 (1277011

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
{incorperated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a)  Basis of consolidation (continued)
(v) Associales

Associales are entities, including unincorporated entities, in which the Group has significant
influence, but not conirel, gver the financial and operating policies.

Investments im associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using ihe
equity method less aity impairment losses, unless it is classified as held for sale or distribution.
The cost of the investment inctuded (ransaction costs. The consolidated financial stalements
include the Groups share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associates,
after adjusiments il any, to align the accounting policies with those of the Group, [rom the date
1he significant influence cornmences until the date that significant influence ceases.

Whet the Group's.share of losses exceeds. its inlerest in asseciate, the camying amount of that
interest including any long-lerm investments is reduced Lo zero, and the recognition of further
losses is discontinued except (o the extent that the Group has an obligation or has made
payments on behall of associate.

When the Group ceases 10 have significant inflnence over an associale, any retained interest in
the formenr associdte at the date when significant influence is lost is measured at fair value and
this amount i3 regarded as the initial carrying amount of a {inancial asset. The difference
between the fair value of any retained interest plus proceeds from the interest disposed of and
the carrying amount of the investment at the date when equily method is discontinued is
recognised in the profit or loss.

When the Group’s interest ih an associale decrease bul does not result in a loss of significanl
influence, any retained interest is not remeasured. Any gain or loss arising from the decrease
in inlerest is recognised in profit or less. Any pains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are also reclassified proportionately to profit or loss if that gain or loss
would be required to be reclassified 10 proiit or loss pn the disposal of the related asseis or
linbilities.

Investments in associated are measured in the Company’s statement of financial position ai
cost less any impairment losses, unless the investment is classified as held for sale or
distribution. The cost of tnvestment includes transaction costs.
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APPENDIX 1ll - AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IHP FOR FYE 31
DECEMBER 2019 (CONT'D)

Compeny No.
19R401015146 (127701-13)

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)
(vi)  Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests at the end of the reporting period, being the equily in 2 subsidigry not
attributable directly or indirectly o ihe equity holders of the Company, are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position and siatement of changes irn equity within equity,
separalely [rom equity atiributable 1o the owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group is presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
cornprehénsive income as an allocalion ol the profit or loss and tolal comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interest and owners of the Company.

Losses applicable 10 the non-controlling interest in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-
controlling interest even if doing so causes the non:controlling interests to have a deficit
balance.

(vii} Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and ironsactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from
intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consoplidated Ainancial staiements.

Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted associales are eliminated
against the investment 10 the extent of the Group’s interesi in the investees. Unrealised losses
are eliminated in 1the same way as onrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.

(b) Goodwill

Goadwill arises from a business combinatjion and represenls the excess ol the aggregate of fair
value of consideration transferred and the fair valve of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired and lizhilities-assumed on the
acquisition date. Lf the [air value of consideration transferred, the fair value of previously held
interest in the acquiree are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the acquiree,
the resulting gain is recognised in profit or loss.
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APPENDIX Il - AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IHP FOR FYE 31
DECEMBER 2019 (CONT'D)

Comparty No.
198401015146 (127701-T0

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysin)

NOTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continned)
(b)  Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annyally or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and carried at ¢cost less
accumulated impairment losses, For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each ef the cash generating anits (“CGUs"™), or groups of
CGLUs, that is expecied to benelit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or-group ol
units 1o which the goodwill is allocated represenis the lowest level within the entity at which
the goodwill is monitored for imernal management purposes. The carrying value of goodwill
is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair value
less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.

{(c) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

All itemns of properiy, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent costs are
included in the asset’s carrying amouni or recoginised as a separale g5set, as appropriate, only
when the cost is incurred and it is probable that the fiture economic benefits associaled with
the asset will {low to the Group and the Cotapany and the cost of the assel can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of parts that are replaced is derecognised. The cests of the day-
to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
Cosl also comprises the initial estimate of dismantling and remowing the asset and resioring
the site on which it is located for which the Gronp and the Campany is oblipated to incur when
the asset is acquired, if applicable. '

Subsequent to recognition, properly, plant and equiproent are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impainment losses.
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APPENDIX Il - AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IHP FOR FYE 31
DECEMBER 2019 (CONT'D)

Company No.
198401015146 (127701-13)

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
(Incorperated ip Malzysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Summary of significant accounfing policies (continued)
{c) Property, plant anil equipment and depreciation (continaed)

Depreciation is ¢alculatéd under the straight-line method to write ofT the depreciable amount
of the assets over their estimated useful lives. The depreciable amount is determined after
deducting the residual value. Depreciation ol an asset does not cease when the asset becomes
idle or is retired from active use unless the asset is fully deprecidted. The principal annual

rates used for this purpose are:
Leasehold land and buildings 1%
Regreational club house 2%
Mator vehicles 20%
Plant and machinery 20%
Office equipment and maintenance equipment 0%
Fumiiure and fittings 20%
Computer and signboard 20%
Kitehen and hotel equipments 20%
Office renovation 20%

Depreciation of |easehold commercial outlets begins when it is ready for its intended use.

Depreciation of property, plani and equipment which are used for a specific project will be
charged to thal particular project. Depreciation of gther property, plant and equipment are
charged to profil or Joss accordingly.

The depreciation method, useful life and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, al the end of each reporting period to ensure that the amoum, method and penod
of depreciation are consistent wilh previous estimatés and the expected pattem of
coasumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the items of property, plant and
eqlipment,

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon dispesal or when no future
economic benefits are expecled from ils yse. Any gain or ioss arising from derecognition of
the asset is recognised in profil or Joss.

(d) Financial instruments

{1 Recopnition and initial measurement

Financial instruments are recognised in the statements of financial position when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.
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APPENDIX Il - AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF |IHP FOR FYE 21
DECEMBER 2019 (CONT'D)

Cempany No.
198401015146 (127701-10)

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysin)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Financial instraments (continued)
(i) Recognition and initial measurement {(continued)

Except for trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient, financial instraments are recogmised mitially a1
its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability net at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly atiributable 1o the acquisition or issue
of the financial asset and fimancial liability, Transaction costs ol financial assets carried ai fair
value through profit or less are expensed in profit or loss. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the tragsaction price determined under MFRS 15.

An embedded derivative is recognised separately from the host contract where the host contract
i5 not a financial assel, and accounted for separately if and only if, the derivative is not closely
related o the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract. The host contraict is not
measured as [nir value through profit or less. The host contract, in the event an embedded
derivative is recognised separately, is accounted for in accordance with the policy applicable
to the nature of the host contract.
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Company No.
[9R4010L5146 €127701-T))

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
{Incorperated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Summary of significant acconnting policies (continued)
(d) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii}  Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement
Categories of financial assets are determined on initial recognition and are not reclassified
subsequent io their initizl recognition unless the Group or the Company chanpes its business
model for managing financial assets in which case all affected financial assets are reelassified
on the first day of the first reporting period following the change of the business model.
The Gtoup categorises the financial instruments as follows:

(A) Financial assets

For the purpeses of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in
four categories:

Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial asse¢s at fair value through other comprehensive income with
recycling of curnulalive gains and losses.

. Financial assels at fair value through cther comprehensive income with
no recycling of cumnlalive gains and losses upon derecognition
» Financial assets al [air value through profit or loss

The classification depends on the entity's business medel for managing
the financial assets and the coniraciual cash flows characteristics ol the
financial asser

(a) Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash Aow chardcteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies their debt instruments:

. Amaortised cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cosl. Financial assets al amortised cosl are subsequently measured
using the effective interest (“EIR™) method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recopnised in profit or loss when the financial asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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Cuampany No.

198401015146 (127701-1)

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3
(d)
(i1}

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instrorments (continned)

Financial instrument categories and subsequent measmrement (continued)

(A)

(a)

Financial assels (continued)

Debt instrurnénts {confinued)

) Fair value through other comprehensive income {(*FVOC1)

Financigl assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for

selling the financial assets, and the assets’ cash Aows represent solely payments
of principal and inerest, are measured & FVOCI. For debt instrumenis at

‘FVOC], interest income, foreign exchange revalnation and impairment losses

or reversals are recognised in profit or loss and computed in the same manner
as for financial assels measured &t amontised cosi. The remaining fair vale
changes are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition,
the cumulative fair value change recognised in oiher comprehensive income is
recycled to profil or loss.

. Fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL™)

Financial assets at FVPL include fihancial assets held for trading, financial

assets designated apon initial recognition al fair value through profit or loss, or
financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fzir value. Financial
assets are classified as held for Irading if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling or repurchasing in the near teom. Derivatives, including separated
embedded dedvatives, aré also classified as held for irading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not solely. payments of principal and interest are classified and measured
al fair value through profit or loss, irespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments. 1o be ¢lassified at amorlised
cost or at FVYOCI, as described above, debt instruments may be designated at
fair value through profit or loss on mnitial recognition if deing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounling mismatch.

‘Financial assets al fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statements

of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in
the profil or loss.
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Campany No.
198401015146 (127701-1))

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
(Encorporated in Malaysin)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3
(d)
(i

Summary of significant acconnting policies (continued)

Financial instroments (continned)

Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement (continued)
(A)  Financial assets (continued)

(b)  Equity instruments

The Group subsequenily measures all equity investments al fair value. Upon initial
recognition, the Group can make an irrevocable eleclion to classify its equily
investmenis that is not held for irading as equity instruments designated at FVOCL. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and fosses on these [inancial assets are not recycled to profit or loss. Dividends
are recognised as other income in the profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, except when the CGironp benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part
of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity instruments designaled at FVOCTI are-neot subject 1o
impairment assessmeni.

(B)  Financial ligbilities
The Group classifies their financial liabilities in the following measurement categories;

. Financial ligbilities at fair vale through profit or loss
. Financial liabilities a1 amortised cost

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include finaneial Liabilities held
for (rading, including derivalives (except for a derivative that is a [inancial guaraniee
contract or a designated and efféclive hedging instmiment) or fnancial lidbilities
designated inlo this category upon initial recognition.

Subsequent Lo initial recognition, financial lizbilities at fair value through profit or loss
are measured at fair value with the gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.

Financial ligbilities designated upon initia) recognition at fair value through profit or
loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only il the criteria in MFRS 9

are satisfied. The Graop has not designated any finandial liabilily at fair value through
profit or loss.
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198401015146 (127701-10)

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
{Incorperated in Malaysin)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continved)
(d) Financial instrumentis (continned)
(ii)  Finangial instrumem categories and subsequent measurement (cantinued)

(B) Financial lighilities (continued)

Subsequent to initiai recognition, other financial liabililies are measured af amortised
cost nsing the EIR method. Gaing and losses are recognised in profit or loss through the
amoriisation process.

(1)  Financial guaraniee contracis

A financial guarantee contract is a coniract that requires the issuer to make specilied payments
to reimburse the holder [or a loss it incurs becguse a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in dccordance with the onginal or modified tenns of a debt instrument.

Financial puarantee comiracts are recognised initially as a liability ai fair value, net of
transaction costs that are directly atiributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the liability is measured at the higher of Lthe amowmt of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with MFRS 9, and the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with the principles of
MFRS 15. Liabilities arising from [inancial guarantees are presented together with other
provisions.

(iv)  Regular way purchase or sale of financial assets

A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale of a inancial asset under a centract whose
terms require delivery of the asset within the time frame established generally by regulation or
convenlion in the marketplace concemed.

A regular way purchase orsale of financial assets is recognised and derecognised, as applicable,

using trade date accounting (j.¢. the date the Group commits themselves to purchase or sell an
asset).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Financial mstroments (continned)

(iv)  Repular way purchase or sale of financial assets {continued)
Trade daie accounting refers 1o0:

(a)  the recognition of an asset to be received and the liability io pay for il on the
trade date; and

(b)  derecognilion of an assel that is sold, récoguition of any gain or loss on disposal
and the recognition of a receivable from the buyer for paymerit on the trade date.

Generally, interest does nat start 10 accrue on the assel and corresponding liability umiil the
seltlement daie when title passes.

() Derecognition
A financial asset or a part of it is derecognised when, and only when:

(2)  the coniractual rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or

(b)  the Group has transferred their rights to receive cash flows fom the asset or has
assumed -an obligation 1o pay the received cash flows in full withoul material
deldy to athird party under a pass-through amingement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but have transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred their rights 1o receive cash Mlows from an assel or has entered
into & pass-through arrangemeni, the Group evaluates if, and io what extent, the Group has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When the Group. has nejther transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the exient of their continuing
involvement. In that case, the Groop also recognises an associated lability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and abligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of # guatantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration thal the Group could be required to repay.

34

129



APPENDIX Il - AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF |IHP FOR FYE 31
DECEMBER 2019 (CONT'D)

Company No.
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IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
(Incorperated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Financial instruments (continned)

(v) Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial assel, the difference between the camrying amount (measured

at the date of derecognition) and the consideration receivéd {including any néw asset obtained
less any new liability assnmed) is recognised in profit or loss.

A financial liability or & part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation specified
in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. On derecognition of a financial liability, the
difference between the carrying amount and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets-(ransferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

(vi)  Offsetting of financial statements
Financial assets and findncial lLiabilities are offset and the net amoun! 15 presenied in the
slatements of financial position if there is a cumrenily enforceable legal nght fo offset the

recognised amounts and there is an intention to seltle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Maizysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(e) Impairmeant
(i)  Impainnent of financial assets

The Group and the Company recognise an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs"™) for
all debt instruments not held at FVPL. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contracted cash flows due in accordance with the conttact and all the cash flows that the Group
and the Company expect to receive, diseounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expecied cash flows will include cash Nows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral {o the contraciual temms.

ECLs are recognised in two stapes. For eredit exposures for which there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses.
that result from defaull events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-maenth ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credil risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the tirning of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For irade receivables and contract assets, the Group and the Company apply a simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group and the Company do not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognise a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group and the Company established & provision matrix for trade receivable thai is
based on historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific Lo the
debtors and the economic environment,

The Group and the Company consider a financial asset in default when contractual payments
are 90 days past due. However, in certain ¢ases, the Group and the Company may also consider
a financial asset to be in defzult when intemal or extenal information indicates that the Group
and the Company are unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amount in full before
taking into accouni any credit enhancements held by the Group and the Company. A [inancial
asset is written off when there is no reasonabie expectation of recovering the contractval cash
Nows,
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IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
(Incorperated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(e) Impairment (continued)
(ii}  Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets (except for inventories, deferred tax assets and
investment properiies measured at [air value) are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indicalion exists, the
Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount, For goodwill and intangible assets
that have indefinite useful life or are not yet available for use, the recoverable amouni is
estimated at each reporling date.

For the purpese of impairment 1esting, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash
inflows of nen-financial asseis or cash-generating units (“CGUs™). Subject to an operating
segment ceiling test, for the purpose of goodwill impairment testing, CGUs to which goodwill
has beet! allocated are aggregated so that the level at which impairment testing is performed
rellects the lowest level at which geodwill is monitored [or inlernal reporting purpoeses. The
goodwill acquired in a business combination, for the purpose of impairment testing, is allocated
lo a CGU or a group of CGUs thai are expecied to benefit from the synergies of business
combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a CGLU is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value-in-nse. In sssessing value-in-use, the estimated fature cash [ows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects curent market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific io the assel or CGU. In determining the fair
value less costs of disposal, recént market transactions are taken inio aécouni. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the carrying amount of
assel is reduced 1o its recoverable amount. Impainnent losses recognised in respect of a CGU
or groups of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to those untits or groups of units and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assels in
the unil or groups of uniis on a pro-rata basis.

Impairment losses are recognised in profil or loss, except for assets that were previously
revalued with the revalnation surplus recognised in other comprehensive income. In the latier

case, the impairment is recognised in other comprehensive income up to the amount of any
previous revaluation.
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IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continved)
(e) Impairment:(cen{inued)
(ii)  D[mpairment of non-financial assets {continued)

Impairment losses in respect of goodwill are not reversed. For other assets, an assessment is
made at each reperting date as to whether there is any indication thal previously recognised
impairment losses may 1o longer exist or may have decredsed. An impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the assets recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised, An impairment loss is reversed only 10 the extent
that the assef’s carrying amount does nol exceed the carrying amount that would have been
detemined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised
previously. Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss unless the asset is measured at revalued
amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

(}§] Inventories

Inventories are statad ai the lower of cost and net realisable value.

() Property development costs

Cost is determined based on specific identification basis. Property development costs comprise
costs of land, professional [ees, direct materials, direct labour, other direct costs, aliributable
ovethead, payments to subcontractors and borrewing cosis capitalised for qualifying assets
thai incumred during the development period. The asset is subsequenily recognised as an
expense in profit or loss when and as the control of the asset. is transferred (o the customer.

Properties developmeni costs atiributable to unsold properies, upon completion, are
transferred to completed properties held for sale.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in ibe ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of corpletion and applicable selling expenses.

(i} Other inveniories

The cost of completed properties included costs of land and related development cost of its
purchase costs and incidental cost of acquisttion.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
applicable variable s¢lling expenses.

38

133



APPENDIX Il - AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IHP FOR FYE 31
DECEMBER 2019 (CONT'D)

Cumpauy No.
198401015146 (127701-I)

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
(Incorperated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Summary of significant accounfing policies (continued)
(g)  Mining right

Mining right represents consideration paid for the muning right to participate in mimng
operaiion.

(h} Mining expenditure

Mining expenditure represents the expenses for setting up of mining plant. Mining expenditure
is capitalised when it is probable that the projects will be successful and cost can be measured

reliably. Mining expenditure that has been capitalised is recognised in the income statement
upon the commencement of commercial production.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash in hand, bank balances, demand deposits (other
than deposits pledged with financial institutions), bank overdrafis and short-term, highly liquid
ihvestments that are readily convertible to known of cash and which are subjeet to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the staterents of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are presented as net
of bank overdrafis and exclude deposits pledged 10 secure banking facilities.
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IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
(Incorperated in Malaysin)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
1] Leased assets

Curren! financial year

Right-of-use asseis and lease liabilities

Al the inception date, the Company determhines whether a contract is. or contains, a lease in
accordance with the definition of a lease in MFRS 16: Leases. At the commencement date, if
an entity in the Company is a lessee, 1t recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease
Jiability.

The initial measurement of the right-of-use asset is 4t cost. The cost of the right-of-use assels
CoImprises:

(2) the amomnt of the initial measuréemend of 1he leasé liabality;

(b)  any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incenlives
received;

(¢)  any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and

(d)  an estimate of cosis to be incurred by the lessez in disroantling and removing the
underlying asset, restoring the site on which il is Jocated or resioring ihe underlying
asset to the condition required by the lerms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incuited te produce inventories, The lessee incurs the obligation for those
costs either at the ¢ommencement date of as a consequence of having used the
underlying assel during a particular pedod.

On initial recognition, 3 lease liability is measnred at the present value of the lease payment
aver the lease term discounied at the interest rate implicit in the lease, if thal rate is readily
determinable, otherwise at the incremental borrowing cest of the lessee. The lease term
comprises the non-cancellable period of the lease plus the optional period 1o exiend, or not to
terminate an early lermination option, if the lessee is reasonably certain te extend the option
period or not to exercise an early termination option. Lease payments comprise fixed ar in-
substance fixed paymenits, varigble payments linked o an inflation-related index or rate,
purchase price if the lease reflects exercise of a purchase option, penalties for termination and
payment for residual value guarantees.
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NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(f)  Leased assets (continued)

Cuarrent financial year (continued)
Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities {continued)

All classes of right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at costs: (a) less accumulated
depreciation and accumulnted impairment losses; and (b) adjusted for any remeasurement of
the legse liability.

The Company applies the depreciation requirements of MFRS 116 for the righi-of-use assets,
which may be on straighi-line method or another method that better reflecis the consumption
of the righl-of-use assets. Depreciation of the right-of-use asset is over the useful life if the
lease transfer ownership by the end of the lease tem: or if the cost reflects thal the Company
will exercise a purchase option. Otherwise, the Company depreciates the right-of-use assets to
the carlier of the end of the useful life and the end of the lease 1erm. The Company applies
MFRS 136: Impairment of Assets 1o determine whether the right-of-use asset is impaired and
10 accomnt for any impairment loss identified.

A lease liability is subsequently measured al amorlised cost method to reflect interest expenses,
lease payments.and adjustments for reassessment or modification of the lease Hability.

Lessor accounting

If an entity in the Company is a lessor in g finance lease, it derecognises the undezlying asset
and recognises a lease receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. Finance
income is recognised i profit or loss based on a pattern reflecling a constant periodic rate of
refurnt on the lessor's net investment in the finance lease.

If an entity in the Company is a lessor in an operating lease, the underlying assei is not
derecognised tuit is presented in the statement of finangial position according to the nature of
the assets. Lease income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease lerm, unless ancther sysiematic basis is more representative of the time
patiern in which use benefit derived from the leased assel is diminished.
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IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysin)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(i)  Leased assets (continued)

Previgus financial year
(8)  Finance lease

Leases in terms of which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards ol
ownership are classified as finance leases. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured
g an amount equeal to the lower of the fair value of the undetlying asset and presenl value of
the mmimum lease paymenis. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.

Minimum lease¢ payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance
expense and the reduction of the outstanding ligbility, The Anance expense is allocated to each
period durdng the leasé term so as to produce a constant periodic cate bf interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Contingent lease payments are accounted for by revising the
minimum lease paymenis over the remaining term of the lease when the lease adjustment is
confirmed.

()  Opereting lease

Lesses, where the Company does not assume substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as operating leases and, excepi for property interesi held under
operating lease, the leased assets are not recognised on the statement of financial position.
Payments made under operating leasés are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lerm of the lease, Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an

integral par{ of the tolal lease expense, over the term of the lease. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the reparting period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Borrowing cosis

Borrowing costs are capitalised 2s part of the cosl of a qualifying assel if they are directly
attributable to the acquisifion, construction or production of that asset. Capitalisation of
bomowing costs commenges when the activities (o prepare the asset for its intended use orsale
are in progress and the expenditures and bomowing tosts are incurred. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended during the extended periods in which active development is
interrupted. Borrowing cosls are capitalised until the assers are subsiantially completed for
their intended use or sale. [nvestment income earned on the temporary invesiment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or less in the period they are incurred.
Borrowing cosis consist of interest and other costs that 1the Group and the Company inctrred
in connection with the borrowing funds.

(1] Share capital

Ordinary shares are equity instrumeénts. An equity instirument is a contracl that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Company afler deducting all of its liabilities. Qrdinary
shares are recorded &1 the proceeds received, net of directly attributable incrementzl iransaction
cosls. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are
declared.

(m) Provisions

Provisions are recopnised wien the Group has 2 preseni obligation as a result of past event,
when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the ebligation, and when the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted (o reflect the current
best estirnaté. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to setile the obligation, the provision is reversed. If the effect of the
time value of moneyis material, provisions are discounted using a current a current pre~tax rate
that reflects, where approprizte, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due {o the passage of time is recognised as finance cost.

43

138



APPENDIX 1ll - AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF |HP FOR FYE 31
DECEMBER 2018 (CONT'D)

Company No.
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IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
(Incorporated in Malaysin)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Summary of sipnificant accounting policies (continued)
(n)  Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rales prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuaiion where ilerms are rémeasured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting (romn the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation al year end exchange rates of monetary assets and lighilities denominated in
loreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss. However, exchange differences are deferred
in other comprehensive income when they arose from qualifying cash flow or net investment
hedges or are aitriburable 1o items tliat form part of (he nel investment in a foreign operation.

{0} lncome taxes

Income tax expeénse in profit or loss comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred
tax are recognised in profit or loss excepl to the extent that it relates 10 a business combination
or items recagnised directly in equity or other comprehensive income:

(i) Current 1ax

Current 1ax is the expecled taxes payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
current financial year, using the 1ax rates thai have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment (o tax payable in respect of previous
financial years.

(iiy Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method on ternporary differences at the reporting
date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their camrying ampunts in the statements
of financial pesition. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable lemporary
ditferences. Deferred lax assels are generally recognised for all deductible: temporary
difTerences, unutilised 1dx losses and vnused tax credits, 10 the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
unused 1ax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is not recognised if the iemporary differences arise from the initial recognition
of assets and liabilities in a wransaction which is not a business combination and tha affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounling profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwall.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(6)  Income taxes (continued)
(ii} Deferred tax {continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available 19 allow
the benefit of part or all of that deferred tax asset to. be utilised. Unrecognised deferred lax
assels-are reassessed a1 each reperting date and are recognised 1o the extent that it has:become
probable thar funre taxahle profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be utilised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax raies that are expected to apply in the period when the asset
is realised or the ligbility is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have beeh enacted or
substantively enacted ai the réporting date.

Deferred tax relating (o items recognised dutside profit or loss is recognised owtside profit o
loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying wransaction either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

Deferred tax assets and deferred 1ax liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assels against current tax labilities and when they telate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities;
but they intend 1o setile their income tax recoverable and income 1ax payable on a net basis or
their 1ax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

(p) Employees benefits
(1) Short term employee benefits

Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security contributions are recognised s an expemnsé in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group.

(ii)  Defined coniribution plan

As required by law, companies in Malaysia make conttibutions to the Employees Pravident
Fund (“EPF"). Such contributions are recognised as-an expense in profit or loss as ineurred.
Once the contributions have been paid, the Group has no further liability in respect of the
defined contributicn plans.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(@)  Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue that depicts the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration ta which the Group expecis {o be entitled
i exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue recognition of the Group is applied for each contract with a customer or a combination
of contracts with the same customer (or relaled parties of the customer). For practical expedient,
the Group applied revenue recognirion 1o a portfolio of contracts (or performance obligations)
with similar charactenstics in the properiy development business if the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the financial statements-would not differ materially from recognising
revehue on the individual contracts (or performance obligations) within that pertfolio.

The Group measures revenue [rom sale of good or service af its ransaction price, being the
amount of consideration {6 which 1he Group expects Lo be entitled in exchanipe for transferring
promised good or service (o a cusiomer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties
soch as goods and services tax, adjusied for the effects of any varigble consideralion,
constraining estimates of variable consideration, significant financing components, non-cash
consideration and consideration payable ta customner, If the transaction price includes variable
consideration, the Group uses the expecied value method by estimating the sum of probability-
weighled amounts in a range or possible consideration amounts, or the most likely outcome
method, depending on which method the Group expecis to better predict the amount of
consideration to which it is entitled.

For contract with separaie performance obligations, the transaction price is: allocated to the
separate performance obligations on the relative stand-alone selling price basis. If the stand-
alone selling price is not directly observable, the Group estimates it by using the costs plus
margin appreach.

Revenue from contracts with eusiomers is recognised by reference 1o each distinet performiince
obligation in the contract with customer, i.e, when or as a performance obligation in the eontract
with customer is satisfled. A performance obligation is satisied when or as the customer
obtains control of the goed ar service underlying the particnlar performance obligation, which
the performance obligation may be satisfied at a peint in time or over time.

A contract modification is a change in the scope or price (or both} of a centract that is approved
by the parties o the contract. A modification exists when the change either creates new or
changes existing enforceable rights and obligatioris of the parties to the contract. The Group
assesses the type of medification and accounted for as either creates a scparate néw contract,
lerminates the existing caniract and creation of a new couotract, or forms a part of the existing
contracts.
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Cum;_:any No.
198401015146 (127701-D)

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.

{Incorperated in Malaysin)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(q) Revenue recognition (continued)

i) Propexty development

The Group develops and sell residential and commercial properties, Coniracts with customers
may inelude multiple distinct promises to customers and therefore accounted for as separate
performence obligations. If the contract with customer contains more than one performance
obligation, when the stand-alone selling price are not directly observable, they are estimated
based on expected cost-plus margiz.

Revenue from residential and commercial properties are recognised as and when the control of
the asset is transfeired te the customer, Based on the temms of the contract and the laws thal
apply (o the coniract,-¢onirol of the assel is transferted over time as the Group's performance
does not create an asset with an altemative use 10 the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance compléted to ddte. Révenue is recogniséd over the period of
the contract by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation is
determined by the propcttion of property development costs incurred for work performed to
dale to the estimated total property development costs (input method).

The consideration is due based on the scheduled payments in the contract, therefore, no element
of financing is deemed present. When a pariicular milestone is reached in excess of the
scheduled paymenis, a contracl asset will be recognised for the excess of revenue recognised
to-date under the input method over the progress billings to-date and includes deposits or
advances received from customers. When the progress billings to-date and in¢ludes deposits or
advances recéived from customers exceed revenue recognised to-daute then the Group
recognises 3 contract liability for the difference.

Consistent with market pracnce, the Group collecis deposit from customers for salé of
properties. A coniract liability is recognised for the customer deposits ss the Group has
obligations to transfer the geods or services 1o the customer in respect of deposits reeeived.
Customer deposiis would be recognised as revenue upon transfer of goods or services to the
customer.

For residential properties, as part of the statutory requirements, the obligations 1o repair and
made good ol any defect, shrinkage or other faults in the building or in (he common property

which have become appareni within a period of 24 months after the customer takes vacant
possession of the building are recognised as a provision.
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Cemparty No.
198401015146 (127701-13)

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

()  Revenue recognition (continued)

(ii}  Sale of completed properties

The Group recognizes sales at a point in time for the sale of completed properties, when the
contral of the properties has been transferred to the purchaser, being when the properties have
been completed and delivered te the customers and it is probable that the Group will cellect

the considerations to which it would be entitled to in exchange for the asset sold.

There is no significant financing component in the revenue arising from sale of completed
properties as the sales are made on the normal credit terms not exceeding twelve months.

(iii)  Sale of goods and services

Revenue from sale of poods and services rendered is recognised when the services have been
rendered to the customers and coincide with the delivery of services and acceptance by
customers, net of returns and trade discounis.

{iv) Inleresl income

Interest income is-recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method,

(v)  Remal income

Rental income is recognised on an aceryal basis.

(vi) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right 1o receive payment is established.
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Company No.
198401015146 (127701-10)

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
(Incoperated in Malaysin)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)  Contingencies

A contingent liability or asset is a possible cbligation or asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrénce or non-occurrence of uncertain

future event(s} not wholly within the contrel of the Group.

Contingent liability is also referred as a present obligation thal arises [rom past events but is
not recognised because:

(i) i{ is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying econcmic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation; or

(i1}  the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent Iiabilities and asséts are not recognised in the siatements of financial pesition,
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Company No.
198401015146 (127701-1))

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
(Incorperatad in Malaysin)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(s)  Related parties
A party is related to any entity, if:

(i) directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party:

. conirols, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the entity {this
includes parents, subsidiaries and fellow snbsidianes);

. has an interesi in the entity that gives it significant influence over the entity; ot

. has joint control over the entity;

(iiy  the party isan associate of the entity;

(iiiy  the party is & joini venture in which the entity is a venturer;

(iv)  the party is & member of the key management personnel of the entily or its parent;

(v)  the party is close member of the family of any individual referred to in (i) or (iv);

(vi)  the party is on entity that is comrolled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by,
or for which significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly,
aity individual referred 1o in {iv) or (v): or

{(vii} the party is a post-emnployment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the entity,
or of any entity that is a related party of the entity.

Close members of the lamily of an individual are those family members who tmay be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that individual in Uieir dealings with the entity.
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Ct—!,rnpany No.
[9R401015146 (127701-I))

IDEAL HEIGHTS PROPERTIES SDN. BHD.
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
() Fair value measirement

Fair value of an asset or a liability, except for share-based payment and lease transaction, is
determined as the price that would be received Lo sell an asset or paid to trahsfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between markei participants al the measurement date. The measurement
assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal markei or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advamageous market.

For non-financial asset, the fair value measurement 1akes inio account a markel participant's
ability to penerate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that wonld use the asset in its highest and best use.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses ebservable marke1 data
as far as possible. Fair value are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based
on the input used in the valuation technique as lollows:

Level 1 : quotéd prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Group can access at the measurement date.

Level2 : inputs other than quoted prices included withiin Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 : unobservable inputs [or the asset or liability.

The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as-of the date of the
even! or change in circumstances that caused the ransfers.
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